
           

 
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Board of Commissioners

Monday, February 27, 2023 - 7:00 pm
Brentwood City Hall

           

Call to Order by Mayor
Roll Call
Invocation by Vice Mayor Andrews
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag by Commissioner Dunn
Oath of Office for Police Officer Dan Odendahl

Approval or Correction of Minutes
February 13, 2023  

Comments from Citizens – Individuals may comment on any item included in the Consent/Regular
agenda or on any other matter regarding the City of Brentwood. All comments should be directed to the
Board of Commissioners.  Citizens who wish to request that an item be moved from the Consent Agenda
to the Regular Agenda for discussion should make that known to the Board at this time. 
 
Report from City Manager
Report from the City Attorney
Reports and comments by Commissioners and Mayor

Note: All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will generally be
enacted by one motion. Except for any items that are removed from the Consent Agenda, there will be no
separate discussion of these items at this time.
 

Consent Agenda
1. Resolution 2023-27- A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF A COMPETITIVE

SEALED PROPOSALS PROCESS FOR  FIBER RETERMINATION SERVICES FOR CITY
OWNED FACILITIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-209 OF THE BRENTWOOD
MUNICIPAL CODE, for adoption

 

2. Resolution 2023-28 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER WITH FOUR
STAR PAVING, LLC FOR ANNUAL ROADWAY REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS, for
adoption

 

3. Resolution 2023-29 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER WITH
PROSHOT CONCRETE, INC. FOR PIPE REPAIR AND LINING, for adoption

 



4. Resolution 2023-30 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH
SOUTHEASTERN TANK, INC. FOR TANK REHABILITATION PROJECT, for adoption

 

5. Resolution 2023-33 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH
PAVEMENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR ASPHALT REJUVENATION, for adoption

 

6. Amendment of previously approved purchase of five (5) trucks from Lonnie Cobb Ford  

Old Business
1. Ordinance 2023-01 - AN ORDINANCE REZONING PROPERTY LOCATED ALONG THE

SOUTH SIDE OF OLD SMYRNA ROAD, BETWEEN THE NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN
TERMINUS OF JONES PARKWAY, KNOWN AS THE WINDY HILL PARK PROPERTY
FROM R-2 (SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL) TO SI-3 (SERVICE INSTITUTION: CULTURAL,
RECREATIONAL AND GOVERNMENT), for consideration on second and final reading

 

2. Other old business  

New Business
1. Resolution 2023-31 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A MASTER AGREEMENT WITH

MIDDLE TN CHAPTER OF SOUTHERN OFF ROAD BICYCLE ASSOCIATION
(SORBAMIDTN) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF MOUNTAIN
BIKE TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE SMITH PARK, for adoption

 

2. Resolution 2023-32 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROJECT SPECIFIC
AGREEMENT WITH THE MIDDLE TN CHAPTER OF SOUTHERN OFF ROAD BICYCLE
ASSOCIATION (SORBAMIDTN) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF MOUNTAIN BIKE
TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE SMITH PARK, for adoption

 

3. Other new business  
a. Presentation of report on recent debt funding obligation (State Form CT-0253)  

Kirk Bednar
City Manager

Anyone requesting accommodations due to disabilities should contact April Curlin, A.D.A. Coordinator, at 371-0060, before the
meeting.



   
Brentwood City Commission Agenda        
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Approval or correction of minutes from Regular Scheduled Commission meeting
Submitted by: Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Approval or correction of minutes from the February 13, 2023 meeting

Background

Staff Recommendation

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Draft Minutes 



D R A F T
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

 
BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE

 
The Brentwood Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Monday, February 13, 2023 at 7:00 pm
at Brentwood City Hall.
 

Present: Mayor Rhea Little; Commissioner Anne Dunn; Commissioner Mark Gorman; Commissioner
Susannah Macmillan; Commissioner Allison Spears; Commissioner Ken Travis 

Absent: Vice Mayor Nelson Andrews 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Kirk Bednar; Assistant City Manager Jay Evans; City Attorney Kristen Corn;
City Recorder Holly Earls 

               

Commissioner Travis led the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Dunn.
 

Public Hearing
 

Public hearing for Ordinance 2023-01 - AN ORDINANCE REZONING PROPERTY LOCATED
ALONG THE SOUTH SIDE OF OLD SMYRNA ROAD, BETWEEN THE NORTHERN AND
SOUTHERN TERMINUS OF JONES PARKWAY, KNOWN AS THE WINDY HILL PARK
PROPERTY FROM R-2 (SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL) TO SI-3 (SERVICE INSTITUTION:
CULTURAL, RECREATIONAL AND GOVERNMENT)

  

 
  No one spoke for or against the ordinance; therefore, the public hearing was closed. 
 

Approval or Correction of Minutes
 

January 23, 2023   

 
  Moved by Commissioner Mark Gorman for approval of the minutes as written, seconded by

Commissioner Susannah Macmillan 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved - Unanimously
 

City Manager Kirk Bednar removed Item 9 from the Consent Agenda to be considered at a future
meeting.
 

Consent Agenda
 

Resolution 2023-17 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE SMOKING
SECTION, LLC FOR BAND PERFORMANCE AT THE JULY 4TH CELEBRATION AT
CROCKETT PARK, for adoption

  

 



Resolution 2023-18 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH STRATUS OF
NASHVILLE FOR CLEANING SERVICES FOR RAVENSWOOD MANSION AND THE COOL
SPRINGS HOUSE, for adoption

  

 

Resolution 2023-19 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF POTTERY ARTIFACTS
CURRENTLY HELD BY THE TENNESSEE DIVISION OF ARCHEOLOGY BY ASSOCIATE
PROFESSOR PAUL EUBANKS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FOR THE PURPOSE OF AN
ARCHEOLOGICAL STUDY

  

 

Resolution 2023-20 - A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE OPERATING POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES FOR RAVENSWOOD MANSION

  

 

Resolution 2023-21 - A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE OPERATING POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES FOR THE COOL SPRINGS HOUSE

  

 

Resolution 2023-22 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH FRANKLIN
MARRIOTT COOL SPRINGS FOR 2023 ANNUAL EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION DINNER, for
adoption

  

 

Resolution 2023-23 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT
WITH MORTON SALT COMPANY FOR BULK ROCK SALT FOR 2023 WINTER SEASON, for
adoption

  

 

Resolution 2023-24 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER WITH COMMTECH,
A DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC. FOR RADIO/911 SERVICES, for adoption

  

 

Approval to donate a surplus Fire & Rescue Department vehicle to the Stewart County Volunteer Fire
Department

  

 

Approval to purchase replacement computers from Dell   

 

Approval to purchase Microsoft licenses   

 
  Moved by Commissioner Susannah Macmillan for approval of the items on the Consent Agenda, 

seconded by Commissioner Allison Spears 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved - Unanimously
 

New Business
 

Appointment of four (4) members to the Historic Commission   

 
  Valerie Mangrum, Ashley McAnulty, Nicole Smith, and Tara Volpintestawere appointed to serve a

three (3) year term expiring on February 28, 2026. 
 

Appointment of four (4) members to the Tree Board   

 
  Angela Beaton, Cindy Harrison, Patricia Shultz, and Haley Yared were appointed to serve a two

(2) year term expiring on February 28, 2025. 
 



With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:26 pm.
 

APPROVED ________________

Holly Earls, City Recorder



   
    Consent    1.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Res 2023-27 - Approval to Use a Competitive Sealed Proposals Process for the Procurement of
Updating Fiber Termination Services
Submitted by: Sarah VanWormer, Technology
Department: Technology

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-27 - Approval to use a competitive sealed proposals process for procurement of
Fiber Retermination Services for all City owned facilities. 

Background
The City of Brentwood facilities have aging fiber and connections inside the buildings.  Fiber is
critical infrastructure necessary for daily operations. The Technology department is seeking a
fiber company to inspect and update the existing fiber and fiber termination equipment to today's
standards.  The Request for Proposal will include updating fiber terminations for the Service
Center, Fire Station 2, Fire Station 4, Ravenswood Mansion, and City Hall.  Note that the Library
is not included because the fiber terminations there have recently been updated as part of a
separate project to upgrade the secondary fiber connection to that facility.

Because qualifications, experience, and technical competence are important factors in this
procurement, staff is requesting City Commission approval to use a competitive sealed proposal
process to find the best vendor for these services. Once a vendor is selected a contract for the
required services will be submitted ot the Commission for approval.

Please direct any questions to the Technology Department. 

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 2023-27 



RESOLUTION 2023-27

AN RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE TO AUTHORIZE
THE USE OF A COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS PROCESS FOR FIBER 

RETERMINATION SERVICES FOR CITY OWNED FACILITIES

WHEREAS, state law and Section 2-209 of the Brentwood Municipal Code acknowledge that 
there are occasions when the use of competitive bids may not be practical or advantageous to the 
City when qualifications, experience, or competence are more important than price in making a 
purchase; and 

WHEREAS, in such cases, the use of a competitive sealed proposal procurement method will 
assist in choosing the best solution; and 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to obtain fiber retermination services for all City owned facilities, 
and qualifications, experience, and competence are important factors in this procurement, 
necessitating the use of a competitive sealed proposal procurement process.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That City staff are hereby authorized to use a competitive sealed proposal process 
for the procurement of fiber retermination services for all City owned facilities.

SECTION 2.  Such process shall be undertaken in accordance with the provisions of Tenn. Code 
Ann. § 12-3-1207 and Section 2-209 of the Brentwood Municipal Code.

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general welfare 
of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



   
    Consent    2.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Res 2023-28 - Authorizing a Contract Extension with Four Star Paving, LLC. for Annual Roadway
Repairs and Improvements.
Submitted by: Todd Hoppenstedt, Public Works
Department: Public Works

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-28 - Authorizing a Change Order for Extension with Four Star Paving, LLC. for
Annual Roadway Repairs and Improvements.

Background
On April 12, 2022, the Public Works Department opened bids for the department's Annual
Roadway Repairs and Improvements.  The lowest aggregate bid for the 2023 Fiscal Year was
Four Star Paving, LLC., for $3,955,990.61.  The agreement, copy attached, includes an option to
extend the contract for four additional one-year terms, with a CPI adjustment, if the City and the
Contractor mutually agree to the extension.  This request is for the approval to extend the contract
for the first eligible extension period which would be the second year of the overall contract.  

The majority of work under this contract is for the City's Annual Asphalt Resurfacing Program. 
Additional services covered under the paving contract can include smaller work elements, such
as storm drainage improvements, sidewalk/bikeway repairs and construction, and ADA retrofits
all contained within the CIP and Annual Public Works Department budget.  The contract is
structured to provide unit prices for the types of repair and improvement work that is typically
undertaken by the City on an annual basis.

The unit quantities included in the bid form are estimated amounts for each repair or
improvement the City may perform throughout the year.  They are used for comparison purposes
only in order to determine the lowest-cost bidder using items and quantities representative of
actual work.  Not all bid items or quantities will be utilized in the course of the contract period. 
The contract provides that the City is not obligated to the dollar amount of the contract, and the
actual amount spent in a year will be based solely on the amount of work issued and authorized
by the City and the associated unit pricing. This approach provides the City the advantages of
competitive pricing and the flexibility to expand or contract the scope of work as needed
throughout the year.

The FY2024 budget is expected to include a total of $2,700,000 for Annual Roadway Repairs and
Improvements.  There are also several other CIP projects that may utilize the services available
under this contract.  The total amount approved may or may not be used in its entirety, and each
project will be priced according to the unit pricing in the attached agreement.



Please direct any questions to the Public Works Director.
 

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends a one-year extension to the agreement with Four Star Paving, LLC.

Fiscal Impact
Amount : $3,105,000
Source of Funds: See Detail Below
Account Number:
Fiscal Impact:
The following projects and funding are projected to be in the proposed FY2024 budget.  It is
unlikely that the full amount for all these projects will be expended.  The actual amount
expended will be solely dependent on the work authorized by the City based upon the unit
pricing included in this contract.
  
FY2024 Street Resurfacing     $2,700,000
FY2024 Minor Street Repairs    $50,000
ADA Retrofits     $150,000
Storm Drainage Work     $150,000
Bike and Pedestrian Work     $50,000
Guardrail Repair     $5,000
Total Contract Allowance     $3,105,000

Attachments
Resolution 2023-28 
Change Order_#2022-066 
COB Contract # 2022-066 



RESOLUTION 2023-28

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CHANGE ORDER BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

BRENTWOOD AND FOUR STAR PAVING, LLC FOR ANNUAL ROADWAY 
REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS, A COPY OF SAID CHANGE ORDER BEING 

ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY 
REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a change order by and between 
the City of Brentwood and Four Star Paving, LLC for annual roadway repairs and improvements, 
a copy of said change order being attached hereto and made a part of this resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general 
welfare of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn











































































































































































































































































   
    Consent    3.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Resolution 2023-29 Authorizing a change order with ProShot Concrete for Stormwater Pipe Repair
& Lining
Submitted by: Todd Hoppenstedt, Public Works
Department: Public Works

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-29 - Authorizing a change order with Proshot Concrete for FY2023 Stormwater
Pipe Repair & Lining

Background
In 2020, the Public Works Department began a program to line and rehabilitate deteriorated and
failing storm culverts.  As the City's vast network of stormwater culvert pipes continues to age,
the Public Works Department is working to maintain, replace, or rebuild these conveyance
systems to ensure proper operation for many years to come.  As the need for repair is identified,
each pipe section is evaluated independently to calculate costs and impacts related to various
methods of maintenance or replacement.

On June 7, 2022, bids were received for a new Pipe Repair & Lining Contract on a unit-price
basis. Proshot Concrete, Inc. was the only bidder when this contract was rebid.  The initial
contract was approved for FY2023, with the option for four individual one-year extensions, with a
Consumer Price Index adjustment to the individual line items.

Proshot Concrete, Inc. has been responsive and professional in working with the City over past
few years, and staff has been pleased by the work they have provided.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends award of a change order for a one-year extension of the Pipe Repair & Lining
Contract with Proshot Concrete, Inc. for FY 2024.

Please direct any questions to the Public Works Director. 



Fiscal Impact
Amount : $150,000 est.
Source of Funds: Storm Drainage Fund
Account Number: 110-43150-89440
Fiscal Impact:
The Capital Improvement Program allocates $150,000 for normal stormwater maintenance
activities including culvert rehabilitation.  

Attachments
Resolution 2023-29 
Change Order_#2022-086 
COB Contract # 2022-086 



RESOLUTION 2023-29

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CHANGE ORDER BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
BRENTWOOD AND PROSHOT CONCRETE, INC. FOR PIPE REPAIR AND LINING, 

A COPY OF SAID CHANGE ORDER BEING ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A 
PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a change order by and between 
the City of Brentwood and Proshot Concrete, Inc. for pipe repair and lining, a copy of said 
change order being attached hereto and made a part of this resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general 
welfare of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



 

C:\Users\Paul\Documents\Cruzer Back up\April 2018\22-008 Brentwood Annual Pipe Lining\Specs\Change Order\Change Order 
1\Contract Change Order Letter.doc 

SULLIVAN ENGINEERING, INC. 
P.O. Box 1708 

Brentwood, TN 37024 
 

 
 
January 30, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Anthony McDougle 
ProShot Concrete, Inc 
4158 Musgrove Drive 
Florence Al. 35630 
 
 
RE:   2022-2023 Pipe Repair Contract 
 City of Brentwood, Tennessee 
 SEI Project No.  22-008 
 
 
Dear Anthony, 
 
Please find enclosed one (1) originals of “Change Order #1” which has been prepared for 
your review and acceptance.  If the prepared documents are acceptable please make four 
(4) additional copies, sign and return to Mr. Todd Hoppenstedt, Brentwood Director of 
Public Works for further handling.  If corrections or modifications are required please 
mark and return the attached document to my attention so that I can make the necessary 
revisions and reissue the appropriate documentation. 
 
Please call if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
Sullivan Engineering, Inc.  
 

Paul Collins 
 
Enclosures 
 
Cc; Mr. Todd Hoppenstedt, Brentwood Director of Public Works 
 



 

 CHANGE ORDER 
 No. 1 
  

DATE OF ISSUANCE: January 30, 2023 EFFECTIVE  DATE: July 1, 2023 

  
OWNER: City of Brentwood 

CONTRACTOR: ProShot Concrete, Inc 

Contract: 2022-2023 Pipe Repair Contract 

Project: General Construction 

OWNER's Contract No. 

DESIGN ENGINEER's Contract No.  22-008 

ENGINEER Mr. Richard Sullivan, PE, Sullivan Engineering, Inc. 

  

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents: 
 
Description: 

On July 1, 2022, the 2022-2023 Pipe Repair Contract was awarded by the City of Brentwood Annual, having 
a scheduled ending date of June 30, 2023.  Contract provisions allow this agreement to be extended for 
another year in accordance with “Bid Form - Article 6.10, 

“Contract unit prices shall be for a one-year period (FY23, July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023), at which 
time the City of Brentwood Public Works Director may elect to extend the contract for four 
additional one-year periods (FY24 (July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024, FY25 (July 1, 2024-June 30, 
2025, FY26 (July 1, 2025-June 30, 2026, FY27 (July 1, 2026-June 30, 2027).  Provided the 
Bidder agrees to the extension, further agreeing that all original unit price bids will be increased or 
decreased in accordance with the Consumer Price Index.” 

 
According to the Bureau of Labor and Statistics the consumer Price Index has increased 6.5 % over the last 
twelve months and will therefore be reflected in the extension of your annual contract should all parties agree. 

 
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX – December 2022 

 
The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) declined 0.1 percent in December on a seasonally 
adjusted basis, after increasing 0.1 percent in November, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reported today. Over 
the last 12 months, the all items index increased 6.5 percent before seasonal adjustment. 
 
The index for gasoline was by far the largest contributor to the monthly all items decrease, more than offsetting 
increases in shelter indexes. The food index increased 0.3 percent over the month with the food at home index 
rising 0.2 percent. The energy index decreased 4.5 percent over the month as the gasoline index declined; other 
major energy component indexes increased over the Month. 
 
The index for all items less food and energy rose 0.3 percent in December, after rising 0.2 percent in November. 
Indexes which increased in December include the shelter, household furnishings and operations, motor vehicle 
insurance, recreation, and apparel indexes. The indexes for used cars and 
trucks, and airline fares were among those that decreased over the month. 
 
The all items index increased 6.5 percent for the 12 months ending December; this was the smallest 12-month 
increase since the period ending October 2021. The all items less food and energy index rose 5.7 percent over the 
last 12 months. The energy index increased 7.3 percent for the 12 months ending December, and the food index 
increased 10.4 percent over the last year; all of these increases were smaller than for the 12-month period ending 
November. 

 



 

Reason for Change Order: 
Renew existing contract to provide construction and maintenance services on an as needed basis for a 
period of one year (July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 inclusive) as stipulated in the contract. 

 
Attachments: (List documents supporting change) 

1) Revised unit cost analysis based on the Consumer Price Index adjustment. 
 

 CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:   CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES: 

Original Contract Price 

 

   $9,789.00 

 Original Contract Times: 

   Substantial Completion: June 30, 2023 

   Ready for final payment: June 30, 2023 

                                   (days or dates) 

Net Increase (Decrease) from previous Change Orders  

No. -0- to -0-: 

 

   $0.00 

 Net change from previous Change Orders No. -0- to  

No. -0-: 

   Substantial Completion: June 30, 2023 

   Ready for final payment: June 30, 2023 

                                       (days or dates) 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 

 

   $9,789.00 

 Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 

   Substantial Completion: June 30, 2023 

   Ready for final payment: June 30, 2023 

                                     (days or dates) 

Net increase (decrease) of this Change Order: 

 

   $636.29 

 

 Net increase (decrease) this Change Order: 

   Substantial Completion:  -365- 

   Ready for final payment: -365- 

                                     (days) 

Contract Price with all approved Change Orders: 

 

   $10,425.29 

 Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 

   Substantial Completion: June 30, 2024 

   Ready for final payment: June 30, 2024 

                                    (days or dates) 

 

 RECOMMENDED: APPROVED: ACCEPTED:  

By:   Paul Collins,              By:  _________________          By:  __________________                

  ENGINEER OWNER   CONTRACTOR 
(Authorized Signature) (Authorized Signature)      (Authorized Signature) 

 

Date: January 30, 2023              Date: _______________              Date:______________    

          

 
EJCDC 1910-8-B (1996 Edition) 
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by The Associated General Contractors of America and the Construction Specifications Institute.   

2-13-2023



CITY OF BRENTWOOD
ROADWAY REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS

2009-2010

1/30/2023CONSTRUCTION BID TABULATION
COUNTY WILLIAMSON Add #0

PROJ. NO. 22-008 ??/??/2022

PROJ. LIMITS 2022-2023 PIPE REPAIR CONTRACT

DESIGN BY SULLIVAN ENGINEERING, INC. BID DATE

ESTIMATE PREPARED BY:  Paul Collins 6/7/2022 Contract Award Change Order #1 30-Jan-23

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES ProShot Concrete Feb. 2023 CPI 6.50% April 2011 CPI 20.00%

FOOTNOTES ITEM  NO. ITEM  DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
2020-2021 UNIT 

PRICE

2020-2021 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

2021-2022 UNIT 
PRICE

2021-2022 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

ROUND PIPE LINER

607-65.01
18-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $254.00 $254.00 $270.51 $270.51 $324.61 $324.61

607-65.02
24-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $264.00 $264.00 $281.16 $281.16 $337.39 $337.39

607-65.03
30-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $312.00 $312.00 $332.28 $332.28 $398.74 $398.74

607-65.04
36-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $340.00 $340.00 $362.10 $362.10 $434.52 $434.52

607-65.05
42-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $260.00 $260.00 $276.90 $276.90 $332.28 $332.28

607-65.06
48-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $300.00 $300.00 $319.50 $319.50 $383.40 $383.40

607-65.07
54-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $335.00 $335.00 $356.78 $356.78 $428.13 $428.13

607-65.08
60-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $340.00 $340.00 $362.10 $362.10 $434.52 $434.52

607-65.09
66-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $360.00 $360.00 $383.40 $383.40 $460.08 $460.08

607-65.10
72-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $370.00 $370.00 $394.05 $394.05 $472.86 $472.86

607-65.11
78-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $380.00 $380.00 $404.70 $404.70 $485.64 $485.64

607-65.12
84-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $420.00 $420.00 $447.30 $447.30 $536.76 $536.76

607-65.13
90-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $480.00 $480.00 $511.20 $511.20 $613.44 $613.44

67—65.14
96-INCH ROUND PIPE LINER 5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE 
MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $500.00 $500.00 $532.50 $532.50 $639.00 $639.00

ARCH PIPE LINER

607-65.100
21" X 15" PIPE ARCH (18-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $220.00 $220.00 $234.30 $234.30 $281.16 $281.16

607-65.101
28" X 20" PIPE ARCH (24-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $230.00 $230.00 $244.95 $244.95 $293.94 $293.94

607-65.102
35" X 24" PIPE ARCH (30-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $240.00 $240.00 $255.60 $255.60 $306.72 $306.72

607-65.103
42" X 31" PIPE ARCH (36-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $200.00 $200.00 $213.00 $213.00 $255.60 $255.60

607-65.104
49" X 38" PIPE ARCH (42-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $159.00 $159.00 $169.34 $169.34 $203.20 $203.20

607-65.105
53" X 41" PIPE ARCH (48-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $160.00 $160.00 $170.40 $170.40 $204.48 $204.48

607-65.106
60" X 46" PIPE ARCH (54-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $170.00 $170.00 $181.05 $181.05 $217.26 $217.26

607-65.107
66" X 51" PIPE ARCH (60-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $190.00 $190.00 $202.35 $202.35 $242.82 $242.82

Bid Tab 6-7-22.xlsx 7 1/30/2023



CITY OF BRENTWOOD
ROADWAY REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS

2009-2010

1/30/2023ESTIMATED QUANTITIES ProShot Concrete Feb. 2023 CPI 6.50% April 2011 CPI 20.00%

FOOTNOTES ITEM  NO. ITEM  DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
2020-2021 UNIT 

PRICE

2020-2021 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

2021-2022 UNIT 
PRICE

2021-2022 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

ROUND PIPE LINER

607-65.108
73" X 55" PIPE ARCH (66-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $200.00 $200.00 $213.00 $213.00 $255.60 $255.60

607-65.109
81" X 59" PIPE ARCH (72-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $205.00 $205.00 $218.33 $218.33 $261.99 $261.99

607-65.110
87" X 63" PIPE ARCH (78-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $225.00 $225.00 $239.63 $239.63 $287.55 $287.55

607-65.111
95" X 67" PIPE ARCH (84-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 5,000 
PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $235.00 $235.00 $250.28 $250.28 $300.33 $300.33

607-65.112
103" X 71" PIPE ARCH (90-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $260.00 $260.00 $276.90 $276.90 $332.28 $332.28

607-65.113
112" X 75" PIPE ARCH (96-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $260.00 $260.00 $276.90 $276.90 $332.28 $332.28

607-65.114
117" X 79" PIPE ARCH (102-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $270.00 $270.00 $287.55 $287.55 $345.06 $345.06

607-65.115
128" X 83" PIPE ARCH (108-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $290.00 $290.00 $308.85 $308.85 $370.62 $370.62

607-65.116
137" X 87" PIPE ARCH (114-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $315.00 $315.00 $335.48 $335.48 $402.57 $402.57

607-65.117
142" X 91" PIPE ARCH (120-INCH ROUND EQUILEVANT) PIPE LINER 
5,000 PSI, 2-INCH THICK INCLUDES WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

L.F. 1 $310.00 $310.00 $330.15 $330.15 $396.18 $396.18

MISCELLEANOUS ITEMS

200 PRESSURE GROUT VOIDS S.Y. 1 $40.00 $40.00 $42.60 $42.60 $51.12 $51.12

201
SEAL END AND WINGWALL, 2-INCH THICK 5,000 PSI MIX, INCLUDES 
COVERAGE WITH WIRE MESH

S.F. 1 $50.00 $50.00 $53.25 $53.25 $63.90 $63.90

202 CLEAN ALL PIPES AND STRUCTURES (SOLID DEBRIS REMOVAL) C.Y. 1 $250.00 $250.00 $266.25 $266.25 $319.50 $319.50

203
ADDITIONAL 1-INCH THICK LINING (5,000 PSI MIX) THICKNESS 
W/WIRE MESH

S.F. 1 $35.00 $35.00 $37.28 $37.28 $44.73 $44.73

204
ADDITIONAL 1-INCH THICK LINING (5,000 PSI MIX) THICKNESS W/#4 
RE-BAR

S.F. 1 $55.00 $55.00 $58.58 $58.58 $70.29 $70.29

205
MODIFICATION TO DELETE WIRE MESH AND REPLACE WITH #4 RE-
BAR

S.F. 1 $45.00 $45.00 $47.93 $47.93 $57.51 $57.51

TN DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION ITEMS

203‐07 FURNISHING AND SPREADING TOPSOIL CY 1 $25.00 $25.00 $26.63 $26.63 $31.95 $31.95
1 & 4 204‐07 BEDDING MATERIAL (PIPE) CLASS B CY 1 $25.00 $25.00 $26.63 $26.63 $31.95 $31.95

615‐04.10 NON‐SHRINK  GROUT CF 1 $60.00 $60.00 $63.90 $63.90 $76.68 $76.68
712‐08.06 UNIFORMED POLICE OFFICER HR 1 $50.00 $50.00 $53.25 $53.25 $63.90 $63.90

3 & 6 740-11.03

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TUBE 18 INCH (TO BE USED FOR EROSION 
CONTROL OF "V-DITCH", AFTER THE INITIAL INSTALLATION ALL COST 
ASSOCIATED WITH REPAIR, MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT DURING 
THE LIFE OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.)

L.F. 1 $50.00 $50.00 $53.25 $53.25 $63.90 $63.90

740-11.03

TEMPORARY SEDIMENT TUBE 18 INCH (TO BE USED FOR EROSION 
CONTROL OF "V-DITCH", AFTER THE INITIAL INSTALLATION ALL 
COST ASSOCIATED WITH REPAIR, MAINTENANCE AND 
REPLACEMENT SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.)

L.F. 1 $50.00 $50.00 $53.25 $53.25 $63.90 $63.90

TOTAL BASE BID $9,789.00 $10,425.29 #REF!

Bid Tab 6-7-22.xlsx 8 1/30/2023



CITY OF BRENTWOOD
ROADWAY REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS

2009-2010

1/30/2023ESTIMATED QUANTITIES ProShot Concrete Feb. 2023 CPI 6.50% April 2011 CPI 20.00%

FOOTNOTES ITEM  NO. ITEM  DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
2020-2021 UNIT 

PRICE

2020-2021 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

2021-2022 UNIT 
PRICE

2021-2022 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

ROUND PIPE LINER

BONDING COMPANY

Fidelity and 
Deposit 

Company of 
Maryland

Net Diff $636.28

FOOTNOTES
10425.28(1)     BEDDING MATERIAL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TDOT STANDARD DRAWING D-PB-1 AND D-PB-2.

(2)     INCLUDES REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL GUIDELINES.  NECESSARY 
PERMITS WIL BE OBTAINED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD.

(3)     TO BE USED FOR ADDITIONAL PIPE BEDDING MATERIAL AS DIRECTED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OR 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.

(4)     AFTER THE INITIAL INSTALLATION ALL COST ASSOCIATED WITH REPAIR, MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT 
DURING THE LIFE OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.)

(7)     BID SUBMITTED IS FOR THE COMPLETE LINING OF THE PIPE INTERIOR WALL.  HOWEVER, FIELD INVESTOGATIONS 
MAY DICTATE THAT ONLY THE INVERT REQUIRES REMEDIATION WORK.  AT THE TIME OF THE SITE VISIT IT WIL BE 
DETERMINED THE EXTENT OF PIPE LINING WITH THE CONTRACTOR PROVIDING AN ESTIMATED BUDGET COST PRIOR TO 
THE CITY AUTHORIZING OF WORK.

(6)     TDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, SECTION 104 SCOPE OF WORK, ARTICLE 
104.02 CHANGES IN PLANS OR IN CHARACTER OF CONSTRUCTION, SUB-SECTION C AND 604.31 UNIT COST PRICE 
ADJUSTMENT, HAVE BEEN DELETED AND NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT.

GENERAL NOTES (ALL ITEMS)

(1)     WORKING HOURS WILL BE FROM 7:00 AM UNTIL DARK MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY.  NO WORK WILL BE 
ALLOWED ON SUNDAY UNLESS IT HAS BEEN CLASSIFIED AS AN EMERGENCY AND APPROVED BY THE DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC WORKS.

(2)     BONDS WILL BE REQUIRED AS NOTED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  HOWEVER, BONDS WILL NOT BE REQUIRED 
FOR INDIVIDUAL WORK ORDERS ISSUED.  A RETAINER WILL NOT BE WITHHELD FROM EACH WORK ORDER ISSUED.

(3)     UNIT PRICE BID FOR ALL ITEMS SHALL INCLUDE ALL MOBILIZATION AND LAYOUT FOR A COMPLETE SYSTEM.  
SPECIALTY PERMITS SUCH AS CORP OF ENGINEERS, TN DEPT OF ENV, & CONSERVATION, RAILROAD, ASBESTOS, ETC.   
SHALL BE OBTAINED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD.  PERMITS SUCH AS ELECTRICAL OR REVIEW FEES SHALL BE PAID BY 
THE CONTRACTOR AND REIMBURSED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD.

(4)     MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT OF QUANTITIES SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD AND 
SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS OF THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DATED: JANUARY 1, 2021 AND 
ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

(5)     ALL ITEMS WITHIN THIS CONTRACT INCLUDE INSTALLATION OF NECESSARY TRAFFIC AND EROSION CONTROL IN 
THE UNIT PRICE BID, IN ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND CITY OF BRENTWOOD REQUIREMENTS.  TEMPORARY 
LANE LINE AND SPECIALTY MARKINGS WILL NOT BE REQUIRED AND SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CITY OF 
BRENTWOOD.

Bid Tab 6-7-22.xlsx 9 1/30/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 907E0A7E-A836-45E0-BAB7-1A4C5580683A

June 27

City of Brentwood

5211 Maryland Way

Brentwood, TN  37027

Todd Hoppenstedt

Public Works Director

5211 Maryland Way

Brentwood, TN  37027

615-371-0060

615-371-2215

2022



   
    Consent    4.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Res 2023-30 - Approval of Agreement with Southeastern Tank, Inc. for Tank Rehabilitation Project
Submitted by: Chris Milton, Water & Sewer
Department: Water & Sewer

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-30 - Approval of Agreement with Southeastern Tank, Inc. for Tank
Rehabilitation Project

Background
The Water Services Department's Capital Improvements Program includes funding related to the
rehabilitation of three potable water glass-lined steel storage tanks.  The three tanks are the only
three remaining tanks made of the glass-lined steel construction used predominantly in smaller
storage tanks (under a million gallons of storage) constructed in or around the late 1980s.  For the
City’s larger tanks ranging in size from 2 to 3 million gallons, pre-stressed concrete is the method
of construction.
 
Rehabilitation was considered as an alternate to total teardown and replacement of the water
tanks because of the cost benefit of rehabilitation.  The estimated construction cost to replace a
tank in the 100,000 to 200,000 gallon size class is $375,000.  New construction would provide
about a 30-year service life.  Rehabilitation cost was estimated to be in the neighborhood of
$60,000 and provide an estimated average 25-year service life.  Therefore, staff along with its
consulting engineer, felt comfortable that rehabilitation was the best option for the City.     
 
For the current fiscal year, one tank (Willowick) rehab was planned and budgeted to take place. 
With the two other water tanks, Raintree and Robert E. Lee, to be funded in FY2024.  However,
after much discussion with several contractors, it was determined that there could be some cost
savings realized by including all three tanks in one project and awarding a contract with this
larger scope.  Based on this, staff authorized the project engineer to move forward in preparing
the construction documents to include rehabilitation of the three tanks in the project scope. 
 
On January 24, 2023, bids were received by the City and publicly opened for this work.  The
contractor’s work generally includes draining each tank and installing temporary system
pumping to maintain system hydraulics; cleaning and repairing any/all interior and exterior panel
corrosion or other tank wall and identified structure damage; and providing interior wall coatings
as needed to restore the integrity of tank wall structure.  Two responsive bids were received by
the City with the low bidder, Southeastern Tank, Inc. submitting the low bid of $339,640.  The
high bid submitted for $665,000 was turned in by KY Glass Lined Tank Systems. 

In evaluating the two bids, the required temporary bypass pumping item included in each



submitted bid appeared significantly higher than anticipated.  The project engineer reached out to
the two bidders and determined each prepared their bid misinterpreting the specified setup
required for the project.  Both contractors based their bid with the understanding three separate
pumping installations were required, one at each of the three tank sites but installed
simultaneously.  However, the required installation specification is for each site to be provided
temporary pumping successively, not simultaneously. Therefore, staff believes there is an
opportunity to further reduce the final contract amount via a change order to reduce the
temporary pumping cost. 

At this time, we are recommending an award to the low bidder or Southeastern Tank, Inc. in the
amount of $339,640 as bid.  However, as referenced above, we anticipate initiating a change
order to significantly reduce the final cost of the project based on the clarification for pumping
installation. 

Should you have any questions, please contact Chris Milton.    

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval.  

Fiscal Impact
Amount : $339,640.00
Source of Funds: Water & Sewer
Account Number: 412-16700-8058
Fiscal Impact:

Attachments
Resolution 2023-30 
COB Contract # 2023-028 
Submitted Bids 
Location Map 



RESOLUTION 2023-30

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE TO AUTHORIZE 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

BRENTWOOD AND SOUTHEASTERN TANK, INC. FOR TANK REHABILITATION 
PROJECT, A COPY OF SAID AGREEMENT BEING ATTACHED HERETO AND 

MADE A PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement by and between the 
City of Brentwood, Tennessee and Southeastern Tank, Inc. for tank rehabilitation project, a copy 
of said agreement being attached hereto and made a part of this resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general welfare 
of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 7 

SECTION 00520 
 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between City of Brentwood, TN (“Owner”) and 

Southeastern Tank, Inc. (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows: 

The project consists of corrosion repairs and other miscellaneous repairs to three (3) of the 
City’s Water Storage Tanks.  The water storage tanks included in this project are:  

Raintree Tank – 105,000 gallons – Entrance south of 9440 Foothills Dr., Brentwood, TN 
37027 

Robert E. Lee Tank – 246,000 gallons – Entrance at 1313 Robert E. Lee Ln., Brentwood, 
TN 37027 

Willowick Tank – 183,000 gallons – Entrance beside 1528 High Oaks Ct., Brentwood, TN 
37027 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows:  

City of Brentwood, Tennessee Water Services Department 
Bolted Steel Water Tank Rehabilitation 
Brentwood, Tennessee 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The Project has been designed by Smith Seckman Reid, Inc. 

3.02 The Owner has retained Smith Seckman Reid, Inc. (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, 
assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in 
the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 7 

A. The Work will be substantially completed within 90 days after the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General 
Conditions within 120 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run.   

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed 
and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 
delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $500.00 for each day that expires 
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 
4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final 
payment, Contractor shall pay Owner $500.00 for each day that expires after such 
time until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. Total of Lump Sum Amount and Unit Price Work (subject to final Unit Price adjustment) 
$_339,640.00_. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 
General Conditions and as outlined in Section 01200 of these Specifications. Applications 
for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 27th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of 
Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price 
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of 
Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 7 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has 
been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and 
progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long 
as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off 
by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200 percent of 
Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the 
punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06, but in no instance shall 
final payment of any undisputed amount be held for a period exceeding ninety (90) days 
after the certificate of substantial completion is issued. 

6.04 Escrow Account 

A. If the Contract is $500,000 or more, and funds are retained, all funds retained shall be 
deposited in an escrow account established upon withholding any retainage and handled in 
accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) § 66-34-104. When the major portion of 
the Work is substantially completed or otherwise accepted, and there exists no other 
reason to withhold retainage, the retained percentages held in connection with such 
portion shall be released from escrow and paid to Contractor, withholding only that 
amount necessary to assure final completion. 

B. Owner must provide notice with each and every pay application that the Owner has 
complied with the requirements of Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) § 66-34-104 with 
respect to escrow retainage. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the prevailing interest rate. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 7 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of 
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs. 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 7, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

4. Other bonds. 

a. ___ (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 7 

5. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive). 

6. Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 7, inclusive). 

7. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

8. Addenda (numbers ___ to ___, inclusive). 

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages 1 to 11, inclusive). 

b. Indemnification Agreement (pages 1 to 1, inclusive). 

10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

d. Field Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto 
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without 
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited 
by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 7 

Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid 
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the execution of the Contract. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on __________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

OWNER:    CONTRACTOR:  

City of Brentwood, TN  Southeastern Tank, Inc.  

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 
venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   
 
 

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

5211 Maryland Way  60 Vesta Road 

Brentwood, TN 37027  Lebanon, TN, 37090 

   

  License No.: 22679 

   
(where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority 
to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of 
authority to sign and resolution or other documents 
authorizing execution of this Agreement.) 

 NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other 
jurisdictions where applicable or required. 

 

 



chris.milton
Typewritten Text
SOUTHEASTERN TANK, INC





$48,000.00
$41,270.00
$48,500.00
$41,270.00
$64,330.00
$41,270.00

$339,640.00



$339,640.00





CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TN BID FORM

BOLTED STEEL WATER TANK REHABILITATION 00400 – 1

SECTION 00400

BID FORM

ARTICLE 1 – BID RECIPIENT

1.01 This Bid is to be submitted through the City’s e-Procurement Portal located at 

https://procurenow.com/portal/brentwoodtn, in accordance with the timeframe in Section 

00100 – Advertisement for Bids.

Owner: City of Brentwood

5211 Maryland Way

Brentwood, TN 37027

Project Title: Bolted Steel Water Tank Rehabilitation 

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement 

with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or 

indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and 

in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 – BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without 

limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to 

acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may 

agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

ARTICLE 3 – BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and 

reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of 

the following Addenda:

Addendum No. Addendum Date

B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and 

adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and 

Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 

cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 

conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 

existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 

https://procurenow.com/portal/brentwoodtn
krist
Typewritten Text
1

krist
Typewritten Text
1-20-23

chris.milton
Typewritten Text
KY GLASS LINED TANK SYSTEMS



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TN BID FORM

BOLTED STEEL WATER TANK REHABILITATION 00400 – 2

Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 

drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 

any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 

especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly 

known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 

observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related 

reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of 

such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 

of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 

construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

F. Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding 

paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data 

are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid 

and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of 

the Bidding Documents.

G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the 

Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 

discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the 

written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

I. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 

terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

J. The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that 

Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the 

Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work 

required by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 – BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.01 Bidder certifies that:

A. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed 

individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or 

rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;

B. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false 

or sham Bid;

C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

D. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing 

for the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of 

value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 

influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at 



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TN BID FORM

BOLTED STEEL WATER TANK REHABILITATION 00400 – 3

artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and 

open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 

with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices 

at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 

persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 

affect the e execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5 – BASIS OF BID

5.01 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following 

price(s):

Bid Form

Bolted Steel Water Tank Rehabilitation

Schedule A – Lump Sum Bid Items

Item 

No.
Description Bid Price

1 Tank Rehabilitation – Raintree Tank

2 Temporary Pumping – Raintree Tank

4 Tank Rehabilitation – Robert E. Lee Tank

5 Temporary Pumping – Robert E. Lee Tank

7 Tank Rehabilitation – Willowick Tank

8 Temporary Pumping – Willowick Tank 

Schedule B – Allowance Bid Items

Item 

No.
Description Bid Price

9
Contingency Allowance for Full Bolted Steel Panel 

Replacement 
$30,000.00

10 Miscellaneous Contingency Allowance $25,000.00

TOTAL SCHEDULE (A + B) BID ITEMS

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be 

adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2) 

estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids, 

and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as 

provided in the Contract Documents.  

krist
Typewritten Text
$51,000

krist
Typewritten Text
$45,000

krist
Typewritten Text
$51,000

krist
Typewritten Text
$45,000

krist
Typewritten Text
$68,000

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text
$45,000

krist
Typewritten Text
$665,000



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TN BID FORM

BOLTED STEEL WATER TANK REHABILITATION 00400 – 4

Total of Schedule (A + B) = Total Bid Price $

ARTICLE 6 – TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for 

final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the 

dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.

6.02 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

ARTICLE 7 – ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

A. Required 5% Bid security;

B. Drug Free Workplace Affidavit;

C. Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder;

D. Statement of License Certificate.

E. Iran Divestment Act Requirements

F. Non-Boycott of Israel Requirements

G. Statement of Compliance Certificate Illegal Immigrants 

ARTICLE 8 – DEFINED TERMS

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions 

to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

krist
Typewritten Text
Six hundred sixty five

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text
thousand dollars and no cents

krist
Typewritten Text



CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TN BID FORM

BOLTED STEEL WATER TANK REHABILITATION 00400 – 5

ARTICLE 9 – BID SUBMITTAL

BIDDER: [Indicate correct name of bidding entity]

By:

[Signature]

[Printed name]

(If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach 

evidence of authority to sign.)

Attest:

[Signature]

[Printed name]

Title:

Submittal Date:

Address for giving notices:

Telephone Number:

Fax Number:

Contact Name and e-mail address:

Bidder’s License No.:

(where applicable)

NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other jurisdictions where applicable or required.

krist
Typewritten Text
Kentucky Glass Lined Tank Systems, Inc

krist
Typewritten Text
Barry Tippey, President

krist
Typewritten Text
Barry Tippey

krist
Typewritten Text
Barb Tippey

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text

krist
Typewritten Text
Barb Tippey

krist
Typewritten Text
Secretary / Treasurer

krist
Typewritten Text
January 24, 2023

krist
Typewritten Text
PO Box 13370

krist
Typewritten Text
Lexington, KY 40583

krist
Typewritten Text
859-253-3544

krist
Typewritten Text
859-259-0559

krist
Typewritten Text
Kristin Weatherford

krist
Typewritten Text
kristin@kytanks.com





   
    Consent    5.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Resolution 2023-33 - Agreement with Pavement Technologies, Inc. for Use of Reclamite Asphalt
Rejuvenation Slurry on a Trial Basis
Submitted by: Todd Hoppenstedt, Public Works
Department: Public Works

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-33 - Agreement with Pavement Technologies, Inc. for Use of Reclamite Asphalt
Rejuvenation Slurry on a Trial Basis

Background
The Public Works Department publicly opened bids for an on-call use of Reclamite Asphalt
Rejuvenation slurry on Thursday, January 19th.  Pavement Technology, Inc. of Cleveland, Ohio
was the only bidder.

The City of Brentwood has not historically performed any asphalt rejuvenation projects.  Studies
show that the useful life of an asphalt road can be extended by 5 to 10 additional years through
the use of asphalt rejuvenation products.  Reclamite is one such product that has proven results
not only locally but throughout the country. 

Asphalt is typically made from approximately 94% aggregate and 6% bitumen emulsion
petroleum products called maltenes.  The production of hot asphalt can cause as much as 25-40%
of the emulsion to be cooked off before the asphalt is even laid.  The loss of emulsion can cause
asphalt to begin deteriorating immediately after is it finished. In addition, UV light exposure and
water are other common deterioration elements.  The use of Reclamite Rejuvenation Slurry can
restore much of the lost maltene-based emulsion and help seal the porosity of the roadway
preventing water penetration and UV light deterioration, while restoring the pavement flexibility. 
It acts essentially like sunscreen.

Although this is Brentwood's first experience using Reclamite or any asphalt rejuvenator, staff is
comfortable contracting with Pavement Technology, Inc. because of the local reputation they
have fostered with communities like Franklin, Forest Hills, Hendersonville, Mt. Juliet, and
Columbia.  It is apparent that their team understands how important this project can be in regard
to resident satisfaction.  Pavement Technology is a full service company handling everything
from resident notification, to product application, to clean-up of the aggregate material used to
suppress product tracking.

As part of this trial use, we will be looking to rejuvenate select streets that have been resurfaced
in the past 3 years.



Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends award of a Reclamite application contract with Pavement Technology for up to
60,000 square yards of pavement at $1.15-$1.20/yard depending on quantity.  

Fiscal Impact
Amount : $72,000
Source of Funds: General Fund
Account Number: 110-43120-82640
Fiscal Impact:
Approval is sought for up to $72,000 as a not-to-exceed amount for use on Reclamite
application.

Attachments
Resolution 2023-33 
COB Contract 2023-21 
Exhibit A - Invitation to Bid 
Exhibit B - Submittal 



RESOLUTION 2023-33

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE TO AUTHORIZE 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

BRENTWOOD AND PAVEMENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR ASPHALT 
REJUVENATION, A COPY OF SAID AGREEMENT BEING ATTACHED HERETO 

AND MADE A PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement by and between the 
City of Brentwood, Tennessee and Pavement Technologies, Inc. for asphalt rejuvenation, a copy 
of said agreement being attached hereto and made a part of this resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general welfare 
of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



 
 
 
 
 

Asphalt Rejuvenation 
 

I. OVERVIEW 

A. CONTRACT AND NUMBER 

Contract for Asphalt Rejuvenation 

COB Contract No. 2023-021 

B. GENERAL INFORMATION 

THIS CONTRACT is hereby entered into this _______ day of ________________, 20___, by and between the 
CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called the “City” and Pavement 
Technology, Inc., hereinafter called “Contractor”. 

C. SCOPE AND COST OF THIS CONTRACT 

The Contractor shall be responsible for resident notification, application of Reclamite covering up to 60,000/SY 
of pavement, with proper cleanup and all necessary labor to execute in accordance with and in full compliance 
with the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A. The work to be done consists of furnishing all labor, 
materials, supplies, tools and equipment necessary to perform all work and services described in the Contract 
Documents. Such work shall be performed at a not-to-exceed cost of $69,000.00. 

D. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

Wherever in this Contract the term “Contract Documents” is used, it shall refer to this Contract, the Invitation 
to Bid issued by the City, (the “Solicitation,” attached as Exhibit A), and the Contractor’s Proposal submitted to 
the City in response to the Solicitation (attached as Exhibit B), all of which are incorporated as if fully set forth 
herein. In the event of a conflict among any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as 
follows: a) this Contract; b) the Solicitation; c) Contractor’s Proposal. 

E. CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE 

Wherever in this Contract the term “City’s Representative” is used, it shall mean the person designated by the 
City to represent the City in overseeing the completion of the work to be done under this Contract. 

F. CONTRACTOR'S UNDERSTANDING 

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor has, by its examination, satisfied itself as to the nature and 
location of the work; the equipment and facilities needed to complete the work; and the general and special 
conditions, and all other matters which might in any way affect the work under this Contract. No verbal 
agreement or conversation with any officer, representative, agent or employee of the City, either before or 
after the execution of this Contract, may affect or modify any of the terms or obligations herein contained. 



  Page 2 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

G. PERMITS 

Any and all permits necessary for the execution of the work shall be secured by the contractor; fees will be 
waived for permits issued by the City of Brentwood. 

II. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

H. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - STANDARD 

Contractor shall comply with the laws of the State of Tennessee regarding employment and payment of 
employees, and shall maintain insurance satisfactory to the City to protect both itself and the City from claims 
under workers compensation acts and from any other demands for personal injury, deaths or property damage 
which may arise from operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by Contractor or any 
subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them. Certificates of such insurance, 
naming the City as an additional insured, shall be filed with the City Attorney and shall be subject to his approval 
for adequacy of protection. The minimum amounts of such insurance shall be as follows: 

Bodily Injury $1,000,000 each occurrence 

Property Damage $500,000 each occurrence 

Contractor may purchase at its own expense such additional or other insurance protection as it may deem 
necessary. Maintenance of the required minimum insurance protection does not relieve the Contractor of 
responsibility for any losses not covered by the above required policies. Contractor acknowledges that the City 
is not liable for the safety, security or condition of the Contractor’s equipment or materials. 

III. TERMS 

I. PROTECTION 

Whenever the conditions, laws, ordinances or regulations require, Contractor shall furnish and maintain, at its 
own expense and cost, guard fences, barriers, cones and such additional measures of protection as may be 
required to provide safe conditions at all times. The contractor is also responsible for moving, protecting, 
covering or otherwise protecting city equipment, facilities and/or furnishings in and around the areas where 
work will be performed by the contractor. This includes areas used for access to the work locations. 

J. CONSENT TO TRANSFER 

Contractor shall not assign or transfer this Contract or any part thereof without consent of the City, given in 
writing. Such consent does not release or relieve Contractor from any of its obligations and liabilities under this 
Contract. 



  Page 3 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

K. RIGHTS OF VARIOUS INTERESTS 

Wherever work being done by the City’s forces or by other contractors is contiguous to work covered by this 
Contract, the respective rights of the various interests involved shall be established by the City’s Representative 
to secure the completion of the various portions of the work in general harmony. 

L. SITE SUPERVISION 

Contractor shall constantly supervise all the work contemplated by this Contract in person or by a duly 
authorized representative acceptable to the City. 

M. CORRECTIONS TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

Contractor shall review the contract documents and in the event that errors, omissions or inaccuracies are 
detected herein, shall immediately advise City’s Representative. The City’s Representative may provide 
corrected or supplemental information as may be needed to allow for completion of the work in accordance 
with the City’s intentions. 

N. INSPECTIONS 

All work done by Contractor shall be open to the inspection, acceptance and rejection of City’s Representative 
at all times. Contractor shall provide reasonable and necessary opportunities for inspection of the work. Work 
shall not proceed until Contractor has made timely demand upon City’s Representative for, and has received 
from such Representative, such instructions as may be necessary as the work progresses. The work shall be 
done in strict conformity with such instructions.  

O. DEFECTIVE WORK OR MATERIALS 

The inspection of the work shall not relieve Contractor of any of its obligations to fulfill this Contract as 
prescribed herein and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. Any defective work may be rejected and shall be 
made good, notwithstanding that such work has been previously overlooked by the City’s Representative and 
accepted. If the work or any part thereof shall be found defective, Contractor shall forthwith make good such 
defect, without compensation, in a manner satisfactory to the City’s Representative. If Contractor shall fail to 
remedy such defective work after reasonable notice, the City’s Representative may cause such defective work 
to be remedied by the City or other persons, and the expense therefore shall be paid by Contractor or may, at 
the City’s option, be deducted from any remaining amount due to Contractor. 

P. INDEMNITY 

Contractor shall indemnify, protect and save harmless the City, its Representative, and their officers, agents and 
employees from all suits or claims of every type or description brought due to real or alleged loss, injuries or 
damages to persons or property received or sustained by any person or persons, in or on account of work done 
under this Contract or extensions of or additions thereto, whether caused by negligence or not, or by or on 
account of any improper materials used in completing the work, or by or on account of any accident or of any 
acts of omission of Contractor, its servants or agents; and Contractor further agrees that so much of the money 
due to it under this Contract as shall be considered necessary by the City, may be retained until all such suits or 



  Page 4 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

claims for damages aforesaid have been settled, and evidence to that effect has been furnished to the 
satisfaction of the City. 

Q. RISK 

Contractor shall take all responsibility for the work and shall bear all losses resulting to it on account of the 
amount and character of the work, or because the nature of the property in or upon which the work is done is 
different from what is assumed or what is expected, or on account of the weather, floods, or other causes until 
acceptance by the City’s Representative. 

R. ORDER AND DISCIPLINE 

Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its employees, and any 
superintendent, foreman or other employee of the Contractor who shall appear to be incompetent, disorderly, 
or in any way disqualified or unfaithful to the work entrusted to it, or who the City’s Representative may 
consider prejudicial to the prosecution of the work, shall be discharged immediately upon the request of the 
City’s Representative and shall not again be employed on the work without the City's written consent. 

S. COMPLETION OF WORK 

On completion of the work, or any part thereof, all packaging, surplus material and/or debris resulting from 
construction, demolition or removal, etc., are to be removed and the site of the work left in a neat and orderly 
condition subject to the approval of City’s Representative. Contractor shall provide the City’s Representative 
with proof of proper disposal of any hazardous wastes in compliance with applicable environmental laws and 
regulations. The work will not be accepted or the Contract considered complete until all work described in the 
Contract Documents has been finalized. 

T. AUTHORITY OF CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE 

The City’s Representative shall have the authority to reject or condemn all work, materials or installation 
methods which do not conform to this Contract; to direct application of forces to any portion of the work 
which, in his judgment, requires it; and to decide questions which arise between the parties relative to the 
execution of the work.  

U. SUSPENSION OF WORK 

At the City’s Representative’s discretion, he/she may require Contractor to suspend operations on the work due 
to severe weather conditions or other unforeseen conditions. Contractor shall on not less than ten days notice 
again resume the work if ordered to do so by the City’s Representative. Shall such a suspension be deemed 
necessary by the City, Contractor shall have no claim for damage due to such suspension. 

V. EXPEDITING WORK 

A. Correcting imperfections: If the City’s Representative shall at any time be of the opinion that Contractor 
is neglecting to remedy any imperfection in the work, or is not progressing with the work as fast as 



  Page 5 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

necessary to insure its completion within the time and as required by the Contract, or is otherwise 
violating any of the provisions of this Contract, said Representative shall have the power to notify 
Contractor to remedy such imperfections and/or proceed more rapidly with said work, or otherwise 
comply with the provisions of this Contract. 

B. Annulment: In such case the City may give Contractor 48 hours written notice, and at the end of that 
time, if the Contractor continues to neglect the work, the City may provide labor and materials and 
deduct the cost from any money due Contractor under this Contract; and may terminate the 
employment of Contractor under this Contract and take possession of the premises and of all materials, 
tools and appliances thereon, and employ such forces as may be necessary to finish the work. In such 
case the Contractor shall receive no further payment until the work shall be finished, when, if the 
unpaid balance that would be due under this Contract exceeds the cost to the City of finishing the work, 
such excess shall be paid to Contractor, but if such cost exceeds such unpaid balance, Contractor shall 
receive no further payment. 

W. ACCEPTANCE 

The work shall be inspected for acceptance by the City’s Representative within five days upon notification by 
Contractor that the work is ready for such inspection. 

X. PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 

Upon execution of this Contract by the Contractor and the City, the City shall pay the Contractor in full for all 
completed and inspected work, once invoiced. Upon the completion of all work required hereunder and 
acceptance of the work by the City’s Representative, Contractor shall submit its invoice for the remaining 
balance of the cost. The final invoice shall also be accompanied by satisfactory evidence that all liens, claims 
and demands of Contractor’s employees and other parties providing labor or material used in the work have 
been duly satisfied, and that the material furnished and the work done are fully released from all such liens, 
claims and demands. After authorization by the City’s Representative, the City shall pay Contractor the 
remaining amount due under this Contract. 

Y. TIME ALLOWED FOR COMPLETION 

Contractor shall be responsible to the City for the proper fulfillment of all terms of this Contract. Contractor 
shall complete all work contemplated by the Contract Documents by the date specified in Contractor’s 
proposal, provided that the time allowed for completion shall be extended by any time the work is suspended 
by the City’s Representative pursuant to Section 13 herein for reasons which are not the fault of Contractor. 
The Contractor shall be assessed $250.00 per day as liquidated damages for each day beyond the time allowed 
for completion that the work is incomplete, as determined by the City’s Representative. Such liquidated 
damages may be deducted from the amount paid by the City to Contractor for its work. 



  Page 6 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

Z. COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, county and local laws, ordinances, statutes and regulations. This 
includes, but is not limited to, the provision of the Davis-Bacon Act, Copeland Act and the Buy American 
provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. 

AA. ANTIDISCRIMINATION 

Contractor, in performing the work covered by this Contract, shall not discriminate against any person seeking 
employment with or by Contractor because of race, color, religion, national origin, age or sex.  

BB. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 

If, though any cause, Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations under the 
Contract Documents, or if Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of the 
Contract Documents, the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Contract by giving written notice 
to Contractor of such termination and specify the effective date thereof. In such event, all finished or unfinished 
documents, data and reports prepared by the Contractor under this Contract shall, at the option of the City, 
become the City’s property and Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

CC. GOVERNING LAW 

Notwithstanding any other terms to the contrary in this Contract or in any documents made a part of this 
Contract, the parties agree that any dispute or default arising from this Contract shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Tennessee, and each party agrees to submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the courts of 
Williamson County, Tennessee, or the federal district court of the Middle District of Tennessee. 

DD. DISPOSAL OF WASTE AND CLEANUP 

The contractor is responsible for proper disposal of all packaging, excess materials and waste generated during 
the course of performing work under this contract. The contractor shall provide the City’s Representative with 
proof of proper disposal of any hazardous wastes in compliance with applicable environmental laws and 
regulations. 

IV. SIGNATURE PAGE 

EE. Signature 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract, the effective date of which shall be the date 
signed by the City’s Mayor below. 

CONTRACTOR: 

By:____________________________________________ 



  Page 7 of 7 
   
  
 

 

Revised 01/2020 

 

Pavement Technology, Inc. 

Printed Name:____________________________________ 

Title:___________________________________________ 

Date:__________________________________________ 

CITY: 

CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE 

By:____________________________________________ 

Rhea E. Little, III 

Mayor 

Date:___________________________________________ 



 

ITB 

2022‐ITB‐027 

ASPHALT REJUVENATION 

 

 

City of Brentwood 

5211 Maryland Way 

Brentwood, TN 37027 

 

 

 

 

RELEASE DATE: January 4, 2023 

DEADLINE FOR QUESTIONS: January 17, 2023 

RESPONSE DEADLINE: January 19, 2023, 2:00 pm 

 

RESPONSES MUST BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO: 

https://secure.procurenow.com/portal/brentwoodtn 



City of Brentwood 

ITB 

Asphalt Rejuvenation 

I. Introduction ...........................................................................................  
II. Instruction To Bidders ............................................................................  
III. Scope of Work .......................................................................................  
IV. Terms and Conditions ............................................................................  
V. Pricing Proposal .....................................................................................  
VI. Vendor Questionnaire ...........................................................................  
 

 

Attachments: 

A ‐ Asphalt Rejuvenation Spec 

C ‐ Iran Divestment Act Form 

D ‐ Affidavit of Non‐Collusion Form 

E ‐ Sample Contract 

   



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

3 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Summary 

Sealed bids will be received for Asphalt Rejuvenation by the City of Brentwood through the City’s e‐

Procurement Portal, OpenGov Procurement, until 2:00 pm, local time, on Thursday, January 19, 2023, at 

which time said bids will be publicly opened. Copies of the Request for Bids document may be obtained 

from Todd Hoppenstedt, Director of Public Works, City of Brentwood, 5211 Maryland Way, Brentwood, 

TN 37024‐0788, todd.hoppenstedt@brentwoodtn.gov (615) 507‐2775 or online at OpenGov 

Procurement. Electronic submission is the preferred method. The City of Brentwood reserves the right 

to reject any and/or all bids, to waive any irregularities or informalities in a bid, and to accept any bid, 

which, in its opinion, may be for the best interest of the City. 

1.2. Background 

The City of Brentwood Public Works Department wishes to initiate a contract for annual Asphalt 

Rejuvenation Services, as another effective tool used to slow the deterioration and maintain the 

flexibility of our asphalt roadways. 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

4 

 

2. INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 

2.1. Bid Submission 

Submit Electronic Responses via the City’s e‐Procurement Portal, OpenGov Procurement.  

Electronic submissions are the City’s preferred method of receipt. 

Alternatively, bidders may submit their bids to the following location: 

City of Brentwood, Attn: Karen Harper, Finance Director 

5211 Maryland Way, P. O. Box 788 

Brentwood, TN 37024‐0788 

If a vendor submits both electronically and by a paper submission, the electronic submission will prevail. 

2.2. Bid Inquires 

Bidders shall submit all inquiries regarding this bid via the City’s e‐Procurement Portal, OpenGov 

Procurement. Please note the deadline for submitting inquiries. All answers to inquiries will be posted 

on the City’s e‐Procurement Portal. Bidders may also click “Follow” on this bid to receive an email 

notification when answers are posted. It is the responsibility of the bidder to check the website for 

answers to inquiries. Questions from Bidders must be received by noon on Monday prior to the date 

bids are due. 

2.3. Bid Requirements 

A. Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address and telephone number of the Bidder 

(company, firm, and individual). Bids should be signed above the typed or printed name and title 

of the individual signing on behalf of the Bidder. All expenses for making Bids to the City of 

Brentwood shall be borne by the Bidder. All Bids shall be received by Thursday, January 19, 

2023, 2:00 pm. Any Bid received after this time and date will not be considered.  

Bids may be received up to but not later than Thursday, January 19, 2023, 2:00 pm via the City's e‐

Procurement Portal, OpenGov Procurement, or to the address listed above. The City’s e‐Procurement 

Portal Clock is the official clock for the determination of all deadline dates and times. Without exception, 

responses will not be accepted after the submission deadline regardless of any technical difficulties such 

as poor internet connections. The City strongly recommends completing your response well ahead of 

the deadline. 

A. The Bidder must submit a bid which demonstrates and provides evidence that the Bidder has 

the capabilities, professional expertise, and experience to perform the services described in this 

Invitation to Bid. 

B. Upon acceptance of a bid by the City, the Bidder must provide a certificate of insurance naming 

the City of Brentwood as an additional insured for the liability insurance coverage identified 

above. 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

5 

 

3. SCOPE OF WORK 

The City of Brentwood reserves the right to reject all or any part of any and all bids, to waive any and all 

formalities or irregularities as deemed to be in the best interest of the City of Brentwood. 

3.1. Project Scope and Purpose 

Asphalt Rejuvenation Services Bid, please see the attached specifications for Asphalt Surface 

Preservation with a Maltene Based Asphalt Rejuvenating Agent 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

6 

 

4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

All Terms and Conditions are provided in the Sample Contract, provided with this Solicitation, located 

under Attachments section. 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

7 

 

5. PRICING PROPOSAL 

Line Item  Description  Quantity  Unit of 

Measure 
Unit Cost  Total 

01  Rejuvenation Application (30,000‐

60,000 SY) 
30,000  Square Yard     

02  Rejuvenation Application (60,000‐

120,000 SY) 
60,000  Square Yard     

03  Rejuvenation Application >120,000  120,000  Square Yard     

TOTAL 

 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

8 

 

6. VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE 

6.1. Contractor's Contact Person* 

Please enter the following information for the Contractor's Point of Contact for this project: 

Contact Person's Name 

Contact Person's Title 

Contact Person's Telephone Number 

Contract Person's Email Address 

*Response required 

6.2. Does the bidder take any exceptions to the City’s request for bid, including 
the requested proposed contract as provided in the solicitation 
documents?* 

If Yes, please upload your exceptions in Required Documents #8. 

If No, this means the Bidder takes no exceptions. 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

*Response required 

6.3. Are exceptions, if any, to the City’s solicitation listed separately, described, 
compared to the City’s intention as expressed and implied by the City’s 
solicitation documents, and submitted?* 

Please upload your exceptions in Required Documents #8. 

☐ Please confirm 

*Response required 

6.4. Are the City’s preferred payment terms as addressed in this solicitation, 
acceptable to bidder?* 

If no, please upload bidder's requests for payment terms under Required Documents #8. 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

*Response required 



ITB #2022‐ITB‐027 
Title: Asphalt Rejuvenation 

9 

 

6.5. Are the following included with this Bid Submittal Form in the Required 
Documents #8?* 

Detailed Contractor‐supplied description of proposed product(s) or material(s) to be used for this 

project; 

Specifications for this procurement, marked by the bidder as to compliance therewith as per the 

instructions therein; 

Iran Divestment Act Certification; 

Affidavit of Non‐Collusion, executed in full. 

☐ Please confirm 

*Response required 

6.6. Receipt acknowledged of any and all issued addenda to this solicitation:* 

To confirm that you have received and read all Addenda related to this solicitation, please type the 

Addenda numbers here (i.e. "1,2,3"). If there were no Addenda, type "N/A" 

*Response required 

6.7. Bidder's Authorized Representative 

6.7.1. I have received and read, and do understand and consent, to all instructions, 
terms and conditions, including those imposed by reference, which apply to 
this procurement solicitation and compliance with which is required as a 
condition precedent to consideration of the bid submitted herewith.* 

☐ Please confirm 

*Response required 

6.7.2. Title of Bidder's Authorized Representative* 

*Response required 

6.8. Required Documents 

6.8.1. Required Documents* 

Please upload all completed required forms as one (1) PDF document here. 

*Response required 

 























































   
    Consent    6.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Approval of amendment of previously approved purchase of Five Trucks on September 12, 2022
Submitted by: Todd Hoppenstedt, Public Works
Department: Public Works

Information
Subject
Approval of amendment of previously approved purchase of five trucks on September 12, 2022
from Lonnie Cobb Ford

Background
The City Commission approved an item for the Public Works Department to order five Ford
vehicles from Lonnie Cobb Ford, the statewide contract holder.  As part of that September order,
a Ford F250 4x4 SD CrewCab with a 6.75' box was included for a cost of $51,093.00. There were
also two standard cab F250 trucks.  Staff recently received word that all three of these
vehicles were canceled by Ford Motor Company.  This was the second order attempt after an
April 2022 order for a Chevy 2500 CrewCab from Wilson County Motors was canceled by
Chevrolet. 

The overall fleet vehicle market is continuing to get more volatile and costly.  Given the
immediate needs of the Public Works fleet, we have administratively adjusted our September
2022 order with Lonnie Cobb Ford to downgrade the F250 CrewCab in exchange for an available
F150 CrewCab.  While this truck is not as heavy-duty as the F250, it will allow us to assign the
lighter-duty F150 to the Superintendent of Operations and move his current vehicle, a Chevy
2500 into the Street Department for regular use in the field.

There are still two standard-cab F250s that we will not receive as a part of this order.  Public
Works staff is currently evaluating options for replacing those vehicles as quickly as possible. 
Once staff has a recommendation for those replacements, we will come back before the
Commission for approval.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of this cost-saving amendment of previously approved purchase
of five trucks on September 12, 2022 from Lonnie Cobb Ford.

Please direct any questions to the Public Works Director. 



Fiscal Impact
Amount : $46,190.00
Source of Funds: Capital Projects Fund
Account Number: 311-45200-5027
Fiscal Impact:
Previously ordered and canceled Ford F250 Crew Cab $51,093.00, will be replaced by an
available Ford F150 Crew Cab for $46,190.00.  This provides an overall immediate savings of
$4,903.00, and potentially much more, as compared to waiting to reorder in model year 2024.

Attachments
Vehicle pricing information 



2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

Client Proposal
Prepared by:

STEVEN BLACKSTOCK

Office: 731-989-2121

Date: 08/25/2022

Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North, Henderson, Tennessee, 383404005
Office: 731-989-2121 | Fax: 731-989-3502

1

SWC 209
Lonnie Cobb Ford contract # 75347



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared by: STEVEN BLACKSTOCK
08/25/2022 Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North Henderson Tennessee | 383404005

2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

Warranty
Standard Warranty

Basic
Distance 36,000 miles Months 36 months

Powertrain
Distance 60,000 miles Months 60 months

Corrosion Perforation
Distance Unlimited miles Months 60 months

Roadside Assistance
Distance 60,000 miles Months 60 months

2



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared by: STEVEN BLACKSTOCK
08/25/2022 Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North Henderson Tennessee | 383404005

2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

As Configured Vehicle
Code Description MSRP

W1E Base Vehicle Price (W1E) $44,910.00

101A Equipment Group 101A Standard -$750.00

Includes:
- Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic
  Includes selectable drive modes: normal, ECO, sport, tow/haul, slippery, deep snow/sand and
mud/rut.
- Tires: 265/70R17 BSW A/T
- Radio: AM/FM Stereo w/6 Speakers
  Includes auxiliary audio input jack.
  - SYNC 4
  Includes 8" LCD capacitive touchscreen with swipe capability, wireless phone connection, cloud
connected, AppLink with App catalog, 911 Assist, Apple CarPlay and Android Auto compatibility
and digital owners manual.

995_ Engine: 5.0L V8 $2,335.00

Includes flex-fuel capability.

Includes:
- GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package

44G Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed
Automatic

Included

Includes selectable drive modes: normal, ECO, sport, tow/haul, slippery, deep snow/sand and
mud/rut.

XL3 Electronic Locking w/3.31 Axle Ratio $420.00

NNGV6 GVWR: 7,050 lbs Payload Package Included

STDTR Tires: 265/70R17 BSW A/T Included

64F Wheels: 17" Silver Painted Aluminum Included

A Vinyl 40/20/40 Front Seat N/C

145WB 145" Wheelbase STD

STDRD Radio: AM/FM Stereo w/6 Speakers Included

Includes auxiliary audio input jack.

Includes:
- SYNC 4
  Includes 8" LCD capacitive touchscreen with swipe capability, wireless phone connection, cloud
connected, AppLink with App catalog, 911 Assist, Apple CarPlay and Android Auto compatibility
and digital owners manual.

86A XL Chrome Appearance Package

- Option Discount

$895.00

-$500.00

Includes:
- Wheels: 17" Silver Painted Aluminum
- Chrome Front & Rear Bumpers
- Fog Lamps w/Black Bezels

3



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared by: STEVEN BLACKSTOCK
08/25/2022 Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North Henderson Tennessee | 383404005

2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description MSRP

53B Class IV Trailer Hitch Receiver $315.00

Includes towing capability up to TBD lbs. on 3.3L V6 PFDI engine (99B) and 2.7L EcoBoost engine
(99P) or up to TBD lbs. on 3.5L EcoBoost engine (998) and 5.0L V8 engine (995), 7/4-pin
connector, class IV trailer hitch receiver, smart trailer tow connector (Includes BLIS w/trailer tow
coverage where BLIS is available).

413 Skid Plates $160.00

Includes fuel tank, transfer case and front differential.

52X Auto Start-Stop Removal -$50.00

67T Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $275.00

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD

924 Rear Window Fixed Privacy Glass $100.00

57Q Rear Window Defroster $220.00

595 Fog Lamps w/Black Bezels Included

68P Snow Plow Prep Package $50.00

"SnowPlow" mode button will disable (load shed) the following features to maintain required
electrical charge margins during plow operation/use: onboard 400W outlet, fog lamps and
heated/ventilated front-seats. SnowPlow button also activates relay to snowplow controls. Note:
The F-150 snowplow installation is intended for residential/personal use only.

153 Front License Plate Bracket N/C

Standard in states requiring 2 license plates, optional to all others.

17C Chrome Front & Rear Bumpers Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited
Warranty

N/C

Requires valid FIN code.

Ford is increasing the 5-year 60,000-mile limited powertrain warranty to 5-years, 100,000 miles.
Only Fleet purchasers with a valid Fleet Identification Number (FIN code) will receive the extended
warranty. When the sale is entered into the sales reporting system with a sales type fleet along with
a valid FIN code, the warranty extension will automatically be added to the vehicle. The extension
will stay with the vehicle even if it is subsequently sold to a non-fleet customer before the expiration.
This extension applies to both gas and diesel powertrains. Dealers can check for the warranty
extension on eligible fleet vehicles in OASIS. Please refer to the Warranty and Policy Manual
section 3.13.00 Gas Engine Commercial Warranty. This change will also be reflected in the printed
Warranty Guided distributed with the purchase of every new vehicle.

AS_02 Black w/Medium Dark Slate w/Vinyl
40/20/40 Front Seat

N/C

YZ_01 Oxford White N/C

cab steps Ranger/ F150 cab steps $575.00

black tube cab steps

4



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared by: STEVEN BLACKSTOCK
08/25/2022 Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North Henderson Tennessee | 383404005

2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description MSRP

level front leveling kit $595.00

4 leds Front and rear LED's $825.00

(2) LED's mounted to front grill
LED strip under tailgate

spray in bedlin spray in bedliner $595.00

mlb mini led lightbar $895.00

Mini LED Amber Lightbar

SUBTOTAL $51,865.00

Destination Charge $1,795.00

TOTAL $53,660.00

5



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared by: STEVEN BLACKSTOCK
08/25/2022 Lonnie Cobb Ford | 1618 Highway 45 North Henderson Tennessee | 383404005

2023 F-150 4x4 SuperCrew Cab 5.5' box 145" WB XL (W1E)
Price Level: 320

Pricing Summary - Single Vehicle

MSRP

Vehicle Pricing

Base Vehicle Price $44,910.00

Options $3,470.00

Colors $0.00

Upfitting $3,485.00

Fleet Discount $0.00

Fuel Charge $0.00

Destination Charge $1,795.00

Subtotal $53,660.00

Pre-Tax Adjustments

Code Description MSRP

fleet discount fleet discount -$7,470.00

Total $46,190.00

Customer Signature Acceptance Date

6



   
    Old Business    1.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Ord 2023-01-Windy Hill Park Rezoning from R-2 (Suburban Residential) to SI-3 (Service Institution)
Submitted by: Bob Leeman, Planning & Codes
Department: Planning & Codes

Information
Subject
Second and Final Reading for Ordinance 2023-01, to rezone the Windy Hill Park property from the R-2
(Suburban Residential) district to the SI-3 (Service Institution: Cultural, Recreational and Governmental).

Background
The Board of Commissioners adopted the Master Plan for 52+/- acre Windy Hill Park property on
November 28, 2022.  This Ordinance rezones the property from R-2 to SI-3.  The SI-3 district is
consistent with the zoning of other City parkland.  

The City Commission authorized acquisition of this site in March 2020 for the purpose of creating a
passive recreation park.  The property was previously owned by the Sensing family and was part of the
historic Windy Hill farmstead.  In addition to agriculture uses, the site also served as a small airstrip many
years ago, with a small airplane hangar still remaining on the property.

In the interest of providing as much information as possible for the adjacent and surrounding neighbors,
City staff waited until the Master Plan was adopted to bring forth the rezoning ordinance.  This timing
provides neighboring residents a clear vision of what the City intends to do with the property once it is
zoned SI-3.  Major elements of the adopted Master Plan include:  
 
PARKING: 
• +/- 101 parking spaces w/ necessary safety lighting for both north and south parking lots
 
TRAILS: 
• 1 Mile Multi-Use Trail (10-foot-wide asphalt trail with 2-foot Aggregate Shoulders)
• 6,100 linear feet of secondary trails (10-foot-wide asphalt trails, no shoulders)
• (1) 400 Meter Loop Trail
• 2 Stream crossings  

• 1 Proposed Crossing
• 1 Existing Culvert Crossing

  
AMENITIES:
• 1 Main 30’x20’ Shelter Structure
• 1 Restroom / Storage Facility
• 1 Octagonal gazebo
• 3 Covered Single Picnic Structures
• 15 Picnic Tables
• 26 Benches
• 12 Trash Receptacles
• 4 drinking fountains



• 4 drinking fountains
• Pre-fabricated playground w/ mulch base and shade structure
• 4-6 workout stations
• Way finding signage
• Historical education signage
• Additional shade trees

An agreement with ESP Associates for full design of the park pursuant to the Master Plan was approved
on January 23, 2023. The goal is for construction to begin in the summer of 2023 with the park opening in
the summer of 2024.  In the 2023-28 Capital Improvements Program, $2.7 million has been allocated for
this project. This amount may need to be adjusted slightly higher given current market conditions.  Any
adjustments will be made in the 2024-29 Capital Improvements program. 
  
The rezoning process has followed this schedule:
 
First Reading Board of Commissioners Tuesday, January 10, 2023

   
Community Meeting  Thursday, February 2, 2023
   
Planning Commission Review Monday, February 6, 2023
   
Board of Commissioners Public Hearing Monday, February 13, 2023
   
Second and Final Reading Board of Commissioners Monday, February 27, 2023

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of rezoning the Windy Hill Park property from R-2 to SI-3 as this is the
appropriate zoning district for the park use.

Previous Commission Action
In March 2020, the City Commission approved Resolution 2020-02 to authorize the acquisition of 52
(+/-) acres located on Old Smyrna Road for the Windy Hill Park. 
 
At the April 11, 2022, Board of Commissioners meeting, Resolution 2022-39 authorized an agreement
with ESP Associates, Inc. for master planning services for Windy Hill Park. 

At the November 27, 2022, Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board approved Resolution 2022-127
adopting the Master Plan for Windy Hill Park.

At the January 10, 2023, Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board unanimously approved Ordinance
2023-01 on first reading.

At the February 13, 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting, a public hearing was held.  No members of
the public spoke at the hearing. 



Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 2023-01 
Vicinity map with Buffer 
Windy Hill Park Aerial 
Property Survey 
Master Plan Presentation 



ORDINANCE 2023-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE TO AMEND  THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE, SAME BEING CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, BY CHANGING THE PRESENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
ON CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED ALONG THE SOUTH SIDE OF OLD SMYRNA 

ROAD, BETWEEN THE NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN TERMINUS OF JONES PARKWAY,
FROM THE R-2 (SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT TO SI-3 (SERVICE INSTITUTION: 
CULTURAL, RECREATIONAL AND GOVERNMENT) DISTRICT, SAID PROPERTY BEING 

MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN THE PROPERTY DESCRIPTION ATTACHED 
HERETO AND MADE A PART OF THIS ORDINANCE BY REFERENCE, AND SHOWN ON 

THE MAP ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART OF THIS ORDINANCE BY 
REFERENCE; AND TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP ACCORDINGLY

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the present zoning classification for certain property located along the south side of Old 
Smyrna Road, between the northern and southern terminus of Jones Parkway, be changed from the R-2 
(Suburban Residential) district to the SI-3 (Service Institution: Cultural, Recreational and Governmental)
district, said property being more particularly described in the property description attached hereto as 
Attachment A, and being more particularly shown on Attachment B, and said attachments being made a part 
of this ordinance by reference.

SECTION 2. That the official zoning map be and the same is hereby amended accordingly.

SECTION 3.  That this ordinance shall take effect from and after its final passage, or fifteen days after 
its first passage, whichever occurs later, the general welfare of the City of Brentwood, Williamson 
County, Tennessee, requiring it.



Page 2 of Ordinance 2023-01

PASSED: 1st reading

2nd reading

PUBLIC HEARING
Notice published in: Williamson Herald
Date of publication:
Date of hearing:

MAYOR Rhea E. Little III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn

PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PASSAGE
Notice published in:
Date of publication:

EFFECTIVE DATE

RECORDER Holly Earls



Page 3 of Ordinance 2023-01

ATTACHMENT A
ORDINANCE 2023-01

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
52 ACRE CITY OF BRENTWOOD PARK TRACT FROM SENSING
BEING A TRACT OF LAND IN THE 17TH CIVIL DISTRICT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AND BEING A 
PORTION OF
TAX MAP 29, PARCEL 43, PROPERTY OF SENSING ENTERPRISES OF RECORD IN BOOK 1493, PAGE 812 AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT A MAG NAIL AND DISK NEW SET IN THE MIDDLE OF SMYRNA ROAD AND BEING A COMMON CORNER BETWEEN 
THE
HEREIN DESCRIBED PARK TRACT AND THE REMAINING PORTION OF THE SENSING PROPERTY,
THENCE ALONG A NEW SEVERANCE LINE FOR THE PARK TRACT AND REMAINING SENSING PROPERTY FOR THE FOLLOWING 6 
CALLS
AND BEING APPROXIMATELY 5' EAST OF A 4-RAIL WOOD FENCE:
S 08 DEG. 20' 08 W, 590.76' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP,
S 06 DEG. 23' 20 W, 335.98' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,
S 10 DEG. 05' 56 W, 226.71' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,
S 32 DEG. 22' 48” W, 145.13' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,
THENCE LEAVING THE 4-RAIL WOOD FENCE, S 45 DEG. 41' 01” E, 641.50' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP,
S 84 DEG. 24' 38” E, 636.24' TO AN IRON PIN OLD IN A WOOD FENCE AND IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 3 SNEED MANOR OF 
RECORD IN
PLAT BOOK P67, PAGE 2,
THENCE WITH LOT 3 AND A WOOD FENCE FOR THE FOLLOWING 2 CALLS:
S 08 DEG. 51' 36” W, 242.47 TO A FENCE CORNER AND A 6' HACKBERRY TREE CORNER,
S 79 DEG. 49' 47” E, 104.35' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND FENCE CORNER AND BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER 
OF LOT
272 BRENTMEADE ESTATES, SECTION 12, REVISION 1 OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 20, PAGE 24,
THENCE WITH THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 272-274 AND A WOOD FENCE, S 03 DEG. 26' 48” W, 588.85', PASSING AN IRON PIN 
OLD IN A
18” HACKBERRY AT 191.74' TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND WOOD FENCE CORNER, SAID CORNER BEING IN THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 
81,
BRENTMEADE ESTATES, SECTION 11 OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 18, PAGE 75,
THENCE WITH A WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 81, 78 AND A RESERVE PARCEL, N 82 DEG. 24' 49” W, 449.92', 
PASSING AN
IRON PIN OLD AT 147.29' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN A ROCK WALL,
THENCE WITH A ROCK WALL AND WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF THE RESERVE PARCELS AND LOT 77 AND THE NORTH
TERMINUS OF JONES PARKWAY, N 81 DEG. 52' 28” W, 652.22' TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF LOTS 137 AND 138, SECTION 
THREE,
CARONDELET OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 52,
THENCE WITH THE ROCK WALL AND WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 138-136 AND LOT 131 OF SAID SECTION 
THREE PLAT,
N 82 DEG. 04' 25” W, 638.00 TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF THE WOOD FENCE AND ROCK WALL ALSO BEING THE CORNER 
OF LOT
68 SECTION TWO, CARDONDELET OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 25,
THENCE WITH LOTS 68-65 SECTION TWO CARONDELET AND PART OF LOT 64 SECTION ONE CARDONELET OF RECORD IN PLAT 
BOOK 3,
PAGE 23 AND A ROCK WALL, N 07 DEG. 41' 52” E, 633.01' TO AN IRON PIN OLD,
THENCE CONTINUING WITH A ROCK WALL AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOTS 64-60 SECTION TWO, CARONDELET AND LOTS 59-
57 AND
THE EAST TERMINUS OF CARONDELET PLACE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOTS 32-28, SECTION ONE, SMYRNA 
ROAD
HOMES OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 31, N 08 DEG. 21' 40” E, 1,812.88' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND BEING 
13.33'
FROM A 4” BY 4” WOOD POST OLD AS SHOWN ON FOXVIEW ESTATES OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 81 AND BEING A 
COMMON
CORNER WITH LOT 28, SMYRNA ROAD HOMES, SECTION ONE AND IN THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF FORD DRIVE;
THENCE RUNNING WITH THE OLD ROADWAY FOR OLD SMYRNA ROAD, S 85 DEG. 10' 31” E, 494.71' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 
AND
CONTAINING 2,265,120 SQUARE FEET, OR 52.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



Page 4 of Ordinance 2023-01

Attachment B:
Ordinance 2023-01



JO
NE

S
P

K
W

Y

OLD SMYRNA RD

W
ILS

O
N

P
IK

E

JO
N

ES
PKW

Y

E
X

T
O

N
 L

N

FO
XBO

R
O

 D
R

W
E

LL
S

B
LV

D

BR
U

SH
BO

R
O

D
R

BRUSHBORO

CT

HUNTERBORO DR

JO
NES

CT

C

ARRISBROOK
LN

W
ARDLEY

PARK
LN

HOOD PL

S
H

E
N

A
N

D
O

A
H

 D
R

D
A

V
IS

D
R

FORD DR

CARONDELET PL

C
H

LO
E

C
T

M
A

Y
F

IE
LD

 P
L

JO
N

E
S

H
IL

L
D

R

ODEN CT

LIZA CT

SADDLEBOW DR

VICINITY MAP
PROPOSED REZONING

Ordinance 2023-01
±

Property Lines

City Limits

2023-01 1000' Notification Area

2023-01 Rezoning Area of Interest

Not to Scale
November 2022



FOXBORO DR

HUNTERBORO DR

OLD SMYRNA RD

EX
TO

N 
LN

WILSON PIKE

JONES PKWY

W
EL

LS
BL

VD

PALMER WAY

PIN
E

TE
RR

AC
E D

R

BRUSHBORO

CT

ROL LI NG FO
RK

DR JONES CT

SH
EN

AN
DO

AH
 D

R

HOOD PL

OLD SMYRNA RD

BRUSHBORO
DR CHEVOIT DR

SUMMERFIELD DR

FORD DR

CH
LO

EC
T

DAVIS DR

JONE
S PK

WY

JONES
H ILL DR

ODEN CT

CARRISBROOK
LN

CARONDELET PL

DOUBLEDAY LN NINA CTLIZA CT

SADDLEBOW DR

ST
EL

LA
VI

ST
A

CT

WILSON RUN
I 65 N
I 65 S

EX
TO

N
L N



SURVEY DIVISION

214 Centerview Drive Suite 300

Brentwood, TN  37027

615.370.8500

615.370.8530

hfrdesign.com

0

6

AGRICULTURE

9

1

.

C
O

S

S

E

E

T

N

N

CRMEM

N

E

E

E

O

IXV

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

52 ACRE CITY OF BRENTWOOD PARK TRACT FROM SENSING

BEING A TRACT OF LAND IN THE 17TH CIVIL DISTRICT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AND BEING A PORTION OF

TAX MAP 29, PARCEL 43, PROPERTY OF SENSING ENTERPRISES OF RECORD IN BOOK 1493, PAGE 812 AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A MAG NAIL AND DISK NEW SET IN THE MIDDLE OF SMYRNA ROAD AND BEING A COMMON CORNER BETWEEN THE

HEREIN DESCRIBED PARK TRACT AND THE REMAINING PORTION OF THE SENSING PROPERTY,

THENCE ALONG A NEW SEVERANCE LINE FOR THE PARK TRACT AND REMAINING SENSING PROPERTY FOR THE FOLLOWING 6 CALLS

AND BEING APPROXIMATELY 5' EAST OF A 4-RAIL WOOD FENCE:

S 08 DEG. 20' 08 W, 590.76' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP,

S 06 DEG. 23' 20 W, 335.98' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,

S 10 DEG. 05' 56 W, 226.71' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,

S 32 DEG. 22' 48” W, 145.13' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,

THENCE LEAVING THE 4-RAIL WOOD FENCE, S 45 DEG. 41' 01” E, 641.50' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP,

S 84 DEG. 24' 38” E, 636.24' TO AN IRON PIN OLD IN A WOOD FENCE AND IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 3 SNEED MANOR OF RECORD IN

PLAT BOOK P67, PAGE 2,

THENCE WITH LOT 3 AND A WOOD FENCE FOR THE FOLLOWING 2 CALLS:

S 08 DEG. 51' 36” W, 242.47 TO A FENCE CORNER AND A 6' HACKBERRY TREE CORNER,

S 79 DEG. 49' 47” E, 104.35' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND FENCE CORNER AND BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT

272 BRENTMEADE ESTATES, SECTION 12, REVISION 1 OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 20, PAGE 24,

THENCE WITH THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 272-274 AND A WOOD FENCE, S 03 DEG. 26' 48” W, 588.85', PASSING AN IRON PIN OLD IN A

18” HACKBERRY AT 191.74' TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND WOOD FENCE CORNER, SAID CORNER BEING IN THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 81,

BRENTMEADE ESTATES, SECTION 11 OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 18, PAGE 75,

THENCE WITH A WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 81, 78 AND A RESERVE PARCEL, N 82 DEG. 24' 49” W, 449.92', PASSING AN

IRON PIN OLD AT 147.29' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN A ROCK WALL,

THENCE WITH A ROCK WALL AND WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF THE RESERVE PARCELS AND LOT 77 AND THE NORTH

TERMINUS OF JONES PARKWAY, N 81 DEG. 52' 28” W, 652.22' TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF LOTS 137 AND 138, SECTION THREE,

CARONDELET OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 52,

THENCE WITH THE ROCK WALL AND WOOD FENCE AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 138-136 AND LOT 131 OF SAID SECTION THREE PLAT,

N 82 DEG. 04' 25” W, 638.00 TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF THE WOOD FENCE AND ROCK WALL ALSO BEING THE CORNER OF LOT

68 SECTION TWO, CARDONDELET OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 25,

THENCE WITH LOTS 68-65 SECTION TWO CARONDELET AND PART OF LOT 64 SECTION ONE CARDONELET OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3,

PAGE 23 AND A ROCK WALL, N 07 DEG. 41' 52” E, 633.01' TO AN IRON PIN OLD,

THENCE CONTINUING WITH A ROCK WALL AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOTS 64-60 SECTION TWO, CARONDELET AND LOTS 59-57 AND

THE EAST TERMINUS OF CARONDELET PLACE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOTS 32-28, SECTION ONE, SMYRNA ROAD

HOMES OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 31, N 08 DEG. 21' 40” E, 1,812.88' TO AN IRON PIN NEW  5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND BEING 13.33'

FROM A 4” BY 4” WOOD POST OLD AS SHOWN ON FOXVIEW ESTATES OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 81 AND BEING A COMMON

CORNER WITH LOT 28, SMYRNA ROAD HOMES, SECTION ONE AND IN THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF FORD DRIVE;

THENCE RUNNING WITH THE OLD ROADWAY FOR OLD SMYRNA ROAD, S 85 DEG. 10' 31” E, 494.71' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND

CONTAINING 2,265,120 SQUARE FEET, OR 52.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

REMAINING 40.42 ACRE SENSING TRACT

BEING A TRACT OF LAND IN THE 17TH CIVIL DISTRICT OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AND BEING A PORTION OF TAX

MAP 29, PARCEL 43, PROPERTY OF SENSING ENTERPRISES OF RECORD IN BOOK 1493, PAGE 812 AND ALL OF MAP 11, PARCEL 78

PROPERTY OF LUCY T. SENSING OF RECORD IN BOOK 1502, PAGE 893 AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A MAG NAIL AND DISK NEW SET IN THE MIDDLE OF SMYRNA ROAD AND BEING A COMMON CORNER BETWEEN THE HEREIN

DESCRIBED PARK TRACT AND THE REMAINING PORTION OF THE SENSING PROPERTY,

THENCE WITH THE CENTER OF OLD SMYRNA ROAD, S 85 DEG. 10' 31” E, 1,075.74' TO A PUNCH HOLE OLD IN ASPHALT,

THENCE LEAVING OLD SMYRNA ROAD AND RUNNING WITH THE WEST LINE OF OPEN SPACE “A” AND LOT 1 OF SNEED MANOR OF RECORD

IN PLAT BOOK P67, PAGE 2 AND A WOOD FENCE, S 07 DEG. 02' 44” W, 761.88', PASSING AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF LOT 1 AT 559.36',

THENCE WITH LOTS 1-3 SAID SNEED MANOR AND A WOOD FENCE, S 07 DEG. 47' 17” W, 936.33' TO AN IRON PIN OLD AND CORNER OF A

NEW SEVERANCE LINE FOR THE PARK TRACT AND REMAINING SENSING PROPERTY,

THENCE WITH THE NEW SEVERANCE LINE FOR THE FOLLOWING 6 CALLS:

N 84 DEG. 24' 38” W, 636.24' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP,

N 45 DEG. 41' 01” W, 641.50' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP IN A WOOD FENCE AND BEING APPROXIMATELY 5' EAST OF A 4-RAIL

WOOD FENCE,

N 32 DEG. 22' 48” E, 145.13' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,

N 10 DEG. 05' 56 E, 226.71' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND IN THE LINE OF A WOOD FENCE FROM THE EAST,

N 06 DEG. 23' 20 E, 335.98' TO AN IRON PIN NEW 5/8” WITH HFR CAP AND BEING APPROXIMATELY 5' EAST OF A 4-RAIL WOOD FENCE,

N 08 DEG. 20' 08 E, 590.76' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 1,760,800 SQUARE FEET, OR 40.42 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

G
:
\
2
0
2
0
0
1
7
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
2
0
2
0
0
1
7
 
s
e
n
s
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
3
-
2
6
-
2
0
.
d
w

g
,
 
4
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
0
 
9
:
3
2
:
1
9
 
A
M

,
 
D

R
e
a
g
a
n
,
 
A
R
C
H

 
f
u
l
l
 
b
l
e
e
d
 
E
1
 
(
3
0
.
0
0
 
x
 
4
2
.
0
0
 
I
n
c
h
e
s
)
,
 
1
:
1
0
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DATE: 04-13-2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
17TH CIVIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29, PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
HFR PROJECT NO. 2020017

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.P.C.S. NAD 83(2011) NAVD 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
9135 OLD SMYRNA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENTWOOD, TN. 37027

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE  -  1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIN OLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY/R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
mwilliams@hfrdesign.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENTWOOD-WILLIAMSON COUNTY-TENNESSEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MBSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE INFO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SENSING ENTERPRISES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1493, PAGE 812

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29, PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES MUST BE VERIFIED BY THE APPOPRIATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY COMPANY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL DISTANCES WERE MEASURED WITH E.D.M. EQUIPMENT AND HAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEN ADJUSTED FOR TEMPERATURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES HAVE SCALED FROM MAPS OF RECORD ONLY AND NOT FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED. THERE MAY BE OTHER UTILITIES, THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE NOT KNOWN TO THIS SURVEYOR. SIZE AND EXACT LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY ZONED "R-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR ENTITIES WITHOUT AN EXPRESSED RE-CERTIFICATION BY THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTIES NAMED AND DOES NOT EXTEND TO ANY UNNAMED PERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S LIABILITY FOR THIS DOCUMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR WHOSE SIGNATURE APPEARS ON THIS SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPRESENT A TITLE SEARCH OR A GUARANTEE OF TITLE, AND IS SUBJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS SURVEY PREPARED FROM CURRENT DEED OF RECORD AND DOES NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD PLAIN BASED ON F.E.M.A. "FLOOD RATE INSURANCE MAP",

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE "AE" AREAS AFFECTED BY THE 100 YEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 47187C0094G, DATED: DECEMBER 22, 2016.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA: 4,025,920 SQ. FT. OR (92.422%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF SECTION 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENTMEADE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 18, PAGE 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF SECTION 12 REVISION 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENTMEADE ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 20, PAGE 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION THREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARONDELET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 52

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' HACKBERRY(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'x6' STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-30" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOVEN WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN 18" HACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 80

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES PWKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' RIGHT OF WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 282

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 274

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 273

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 272

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES PWKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 131

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 136

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 137

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 138

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARONDELET PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' RIGHT OF WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 58

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 62

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARONDELET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARONDELET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMYRNA ROAD HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
449.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82-24-49W

AutoCAD SHX Text
652.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N81-52-28W

AutoCAD SHX Text
638.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N82-04-25W

AutoCAD SHX Text
633.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N07-41-52E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1812.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N08-21-40E

AutoCAD SHX Text
588.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S03-26-48W

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
S79-49-47E

AutoCAD SHX Text
242.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08-51-36W

AutoCAD SHX Text
936.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07-47-17W

AutoCAD SHX Text
761.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07-02-44W

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' PUBLIC UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 3554, PAGE 943

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' PUBLIC UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 3554, PAGE 943

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD SMYRNA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOVEN WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUNCH HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN ASHPHALT(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,075.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85-10-31E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 4"x4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POST(O)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOXVIEW ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 4, PAGE 81

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' RIGHT OF WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.33' AS PER SURVEY PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES L. MURPHY DATED MAY 15, 1974

AutoCAD SHX Text
494.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.00' AS PER SURVEY PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES L. MURPHY DATED MAY 15, 1974

AutoCAD SHX Text
1185.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08-21-40W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1181.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N08-21-40E

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86-03-40E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 78 AREA: 355,033 SQ. FT. OR (8.150%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 43 AREA: 3,670,887 SQ. FT. OR (84.272%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE IS CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF ROAD AS PER DEED OF RECORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1493, PAGE 812

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE AS PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED OF RECORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1493, PAGE 812

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE AS PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED OF RECORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1493, PAGE 812

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATER AND SANITARY SEWER EASMENET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STELLA VISTA COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50' RIGHT OF WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
144'%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNEED MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOOK P67, PAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO ANYTHING AN ACCURATE TITLE SEARCH WOULD REVEAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 133, PAGE 348

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 11, PARCEL 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUCY T. SENSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1502, PAGE 893

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 11, PARCEL 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
JONES PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOVEN WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
w/SPIGOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
w/SPIGOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK/

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY SCALING AND INTERPOLATION METHODS A PORTION OF THE SUBJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
389.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08-20-08W

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S06-23-20W

AutoCAD SHX Text
335.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10-05-56W

AutoCAD SHX Text
226.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32-22-48W

AutoCAD SHX Text
145.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45-41-01E

AutoCAD SHX Text
641.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84-24-38E

AutoCAD SHX Text
636.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARK TRACT: PORTION OF PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA: 2,265,120 SQ. FT. OR (52.00%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SENSING TRACT: ALL OF PARCEL 78

AutoCAD SHX Text
& PORTION OF PARCEL 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA: 1,760,800 SQ. FT. OR (40.42%%P ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MGD(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIN NEW 5/8" WITH HFR CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MGD(N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG-NAIL NEW WITH DISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
191.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
147.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
271.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
509.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL R. WILLIAMS  R.L.S., TN. # 1906

AutoCAD SHX Text
04-13-2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATEGORY I SURVEY AND THE RATIO OF PRECISION OF THE UNADJUSTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY IS AT LEAST 1:10,000. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS SURVEY WAS DONE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT TENNESSEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM STANDARDS OF PRACTICE. I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS IS A



WINDY HILL PARK
Final Concept Plan

Park Board

November 7,2022



The park is in the Northeast quadrant of  
Brentwood, East of I-65, south of Old Smyrna 
road. 
The site was part of historic Windy Hill Farm 
owned and operated by the Sensing Family, before 
the City of Brentwood purchased the land.

NOTABLE FEATURES:
• +/- 52 acres
• Stream is classified by FEMA as tributary 6 of 

Little Harpeth River.
• Highest elevations:

• 716’ North
• 736’ South

• Lowest Elevation:
• 684’ at the creek

• Historic Stone Walls located along Old Smyrna 
Road and West Property line

• Existing Metal Structure was Mr. Sensing’s 
hangar for private plane.



PARKING:
• +/- 101 parking spaces w/ lighting for both 

north and south parking lots

TRAILS:
• 1 Mile Multi-Use Trail (10 FT wide asphalt 

trail with 2 FT outer Aggregate Shoulder)
• 6,100 LF of secondary trails (10 FT wide 

asphalt trails, no shoulders)
• 9,100 SF of Concrete (Including the 

Promenade)
• (1) 400 Meter Loop Trail
• 2 Stream crossings

• 1 Proposed Crossing
• 1 Existing Culvert Crossing

AMENITIES:
• 1 Main  30’x20’ Shelter Structure 
• 1 Restroom / Storage Facility
• 1 Octagonal gazebo
• 3 Covered Single Picnic Structures
• 4 Bistro Tables and 8 chairs
• 15 Picnic Tables
• 26 Benches
• 12 Trash Receptacles
• 4 drinking fountains (3-station)
• 6 Dog Waste Stations
• Pre-fabricated playground w/ mulch base and 

shade structure
• 4-6 workout stations
• Way-finding signage
• Historical education signage
• Additional shade trees



















   
    New Business    1.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Res 2023-31 - Master Agreement with SORBAMIDTN for Construction & Maintenance of Mt Bike
Trails Smith Park 
Submitted by: Jay Evans, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-31 authorizing a Master Agreement with SORBAMIDTN for Construction and
Maintenance of Mountain Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park

Background
The Master Plan for Marcella Vivrette Smith Park, adopted in 2011, identified the hilly southwest
corner of the park as having potential for a segregated mountain bike trail system. The City has
not proceeded with development of the mountain bike trails because, as planned, access would
only be available once the City initiated development of the back 80 acres as part of a future
development phase of Smith Park. 

In 2021 the City was approached by a group of mountain bike enthusiasts who, working in
conjunction with Bike Walk Brentwood and the Southern Off-Road Bicycle Association, Middle
Tennessee Chapter (SORBAMIDTN), offered to work with City staff to identify an acceptable
access route from the existing developed area of the park and build the agreed upon access route
to the planned mountain bike trail area.  Since that time, City staff have been working with this
group to develop a trail design that works in harmony with the existing pedestrian hiking trails
and adequately addresses concerns for stormwater runoff.  A professional trail design firm, Rock
Solid Trail Contracting, was hired by the group to design the trail.  That work is now complete
and has been reviewed by staff.

With the trail design complete, two agreements have been drafted for the City Commission's
consideration.  This first agreement is designed to formalize the overall relationship between the
City and SORBAMIDTN for the provision of mountain bike trails in Smith Park. 
SORBAMIDTN is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization that partners with the State of Tennessee
and local governments on the construction and maintenance of mountain bike trails throughout
the area.  They have partnered on nine trails so far, including Percy Warner Park in Nashville,
Wilkins Branch Mountain Bike Park in Franklin, and Montgomery Bell State Park in White
Bluff.  This "Master Agreement" does not specifically authorize the construction of the trail, but
rather defines the responsibilities of the City and SORBAMIDTN in a mutually beneficial
partnership for mountain bike trail construction and maintenance.  The Master Agreement will
renew annually unless canceled, and is to be reviewed by both parties every two years.  A
separate agreement will specifically authorize the construction of the trail.



The attached agreement provides for the City to make lands in Smith Park available to
SORBAMIDTN for trails, utilize SORBAMIDTN for technical expertise, provide rules and
regulations for trail use, coordinate construction and maintenance activities with SORBAMIDTN,
approve all publications and printed materials regarding the trails, and approve any special
activities/events within the trail corridors.  The agreement provides for SORBAMIDTN to
maintain all mountain bike trails and coordinate volunteer activities for same, provide technical
assistance to the City, provide information about trail building schools and trail care crews,
identify mutually beneficial projects, advocate for proper and ethical trail use by patrons, and
make tools and equipment available for volunteer activities.  It also requires liability waivers for
volunteers, liability insurance naming the City as an additional insured, and requires
SORBAMIDTN to hold the City harmless from claims or damages.   SORBAMIDTN will not
attempt to enforce any laws or rules while on park property.  Lastly, the agreement does not
obligate the City to fund any project or activity.

Please contact Assistant City Manager Jay Evans with any questions.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the resolution authorizing the Master Agreement with
SORBAMIDTN for Construction and Maintenance of Mountain Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette
Park.

Fiscal Impact
Amount :
Source of Funds:
Account Number:
Fiscal Impact:
The proposed agreement does not obligate the City to fund any project or activity.

Attachments
Resolution 2023-31 
COB Contract No. 2023-029 



RESOLUTION 2023-31

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE TO AUTHORIZE 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A MASTER AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF BRENTWOOD AND MIDDLE TN CHAPTER OF SOUTHERN OFF ROAD 

BICYCLE ASSOCIATION (SORBAMIDTN) FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE SMITH 
PARK, A COPY OF SAID AGREEMENT BEING ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A 

PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a master agreement by and 
between the City of Brentwood, Tennessee and Middle TN Chapter of Southern Off Road 
Bicycle Association (SORBAMIDTN) for the construction and maintenance of mountain bike 
trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park, a copy of said agreement being attached hereto and made 
a part of this resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general welfare 
of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

ADOPTED:  

RECORDER Holly Earls

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

Approved as to form:

CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



MASTER AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE SMITH PARK

This agreement is entered into the 27th day of February by and between the Middle TN Chapter 
of Southern Off Road Bicycle Association, hereinafter referred to as SORBAMIDTN, and City 
of Brentwood, hereinafter referred to as the City.

A. PURPOSE:
The purpose of this agreement is to provide a framework of cooperation between 
SORBAMIDTN and the City to develop mutually beneficial programs, projects and bicycling 
activities at the local City Park level. These programs, projects and activities cover approved 
mountain biking areas in the Marcella Vivrette Smith Park in the City.

B. STATEMENT OF MUTUAL BENEFIT AND INTERESTS:
The City’s benefits include an active partnership with SORBAMIDTN to plan, construct and 
maintain designated and dedicated mountain bike trails. The benefits for SORBAMIDTN 
through this cooperative effort are provided through the strategic planning of trail development 
and public service to all trail users. The mutual benefit for both parties is to provide a public 
service to maintain designated trails throughout the designated parks.

C. THE CITY SHALL:
1. Work with SORBAMIDTN to identify opportunities (trail projects, education and

assistance) and jointly pursue such projects with the bicycle community and other 
local interested parties. New trail construction projects shall be specifically 
authorized by separate agreements.

2. Make City lands available for mountain biking and related activities, subject to 
applicable State laws, regulations, policy and other management direction. Said lands 
shall be specifically identified by separate written project authorizations.

3. Include and utilize SORBAMIDTN technical expertise in developing City programs 
as they relate to mountain biking.

4. Provide to the public the appropriate rules and regulations pertaining to mountain 
biking on COB lands.

5. Coordinate all trail maintenance and construction activities providing the proper 
specifications and clearances.

6. Approve all publication or printed materials intended for public distribution regarding 
mountain biking on COB lands.

7. Coordinate any special uses or administrative activities within designated trail 
corridors prior to the date of the activity.

8. Review this agreement with SORBAMIDTN no less than every 2 years and modify 
as necessary.

D. SORBAMIDTN SHALL:
1. Work with the City to identify appropriate partnership opportunities (trail projects, 

education programs) and jointly pursue such projects in conjunction with the 
mountain biking community and the City.

2. Maintain all mountain bike trails within Marcella Vivrette Smith Park, keeping said 
trail conditions consistent with approved design documents unless otherwise agreed 



to in writing by the City.  This will be done by hosting Trail Workdays and Post-
Storm cleanups as needed to ensure safety and rideability.  SORBAMIDTN will 
require liability waivers, prepared by the City, to be signed by all volunteers 
conducting work on site.  The City will have the right to inspect the liability waivers 
upon request.

3. Provide technical assistance to land managers and organizations involved with 
projects, educational activities, and mountain biking activities.

4. Make information regarding trail building schools and Trail Care Crews available to 
the City.

5. Encourage members to work with local City officials to discuss and identify 
opportunities for cooperative work or mutually beneficial projects or activities, when 
appropriate.

6. Advocate for members and the public to follow mountain biking best practices, 
including "Rules of the Trail", Leave No Trace and Tread Lightly ethics programs.

7. Provide technical expertise to the City to address mountain bike management on park 
lands.

8. Provide, as available, tools & equipment for maintenance and construction needs.
9. Offer basic mechanical assistance as needed to fellow bicyclists.
10. Encourage safe and courteous trail use and responsible bicycling.
11. Serve as ambassadors for the sport of mountain biking and encourage cooperation 

with all park users.
12. Members will not attempt to enforce any local, state, or federal laws while on park 

lands. 
13. Review this agreement with the City no less than every 2 years and modify as 

necessary.
14. Agree to indemnify and hold harmless COB against any and all claims, damages, 

actions, expenses (including court cost and reasonable attorney’s fees), causes of 
action, suits at law or in equity, obligations, losses, liabilities and liens of any nature 
arising by reason of SORBAMIDTN’s use of the premises or its activities conducted 
in connection with this Agreement, which may include any individual trail 
development or construction.

15. SORBAMIDTN will maintain commercial general liability insurance with minimum 
coverage—at $1 million per occurrence and $2 million aggregate, and naming City of 
Brentwood as an additional insured.

E. IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE
PARTIES THAT:

1. TENNESSEE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT. Any information furnished to the City 
under this instrument is subject to the Tennessee Public Records Act.

2. MODIFICATION. Modifications within the scope of the instrument shall be made by 
mutual consent of the parties, by the issuance of a written modification, signed and 
dated by all parties, prior to any changes being performed.

3. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES. This instrument in no way restricts 
the City or SORBAMIDTN from participating in similar activities with other public 
or private agencies, organizations, and individuals.

4. Any use or events by SORBAMIDTN outside of normal public use will require 
approval by the City, in writing.



F. PRINCIPAL CONTACTS.
The principal contacts for this instrument are:

Land Manager (City) SORBAMIDTN Contact
Name: Dave Bunt, Director of Parks

(or successor)
Name: Nick Shepard, President

Address: P.O. Box 788
Brentwood, TN 37024

Address:1811 Baslia Ln
Spring Hill, TN  37174

Phone: 615-371-0080 Phone:
Email: dave.bunt@brentwoodtn.gov Email: president@sorbamidtn.org

G. NON-FUND OBLIGATING DOCUMENT: This instrument is neither a fiscal nor a funds 
obligation document. Any endeavor or transfer of anything of value involving reimbursement 
or contribution of funds between the parties to this instrument will be handled in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations, and procedures including those for government 
procurement and printing. Such endeavors will be outlined in separate agreements that shall 
be made in writing by representatives of the parties and shall be independently authorized by 
appropriate statutory authority. This instrument does not provide such authority. Specifically, 
this instrument does not establish authority for noncompetitive award to the cooperator of 
any contract or other agreement. Any contract or agreement for training or other services 
must fully comply with all applicable requirements for competition.

H. COMMENCEMENT/EXPIRATION DATE: This instrument is executed as of the date of 
last signature and is automatically renewed annually on the anniversary of its signing, unless 
canceled or amended. Should at any time it be determined that the public’s best interest 
would be served by the termination of the Agreement, the City in its discretion may upon 
thirty (30) days written notice to SORBAMIDTN terminate the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as evidenced by 
the signatures below.

_______________________________________       ____________
City of Brentwood, Tennessee DATE
Rhea E. Little, III, Mayor

_______________________________________       ____________
Middle TN Chapter of Southern Off Road Bicycle Association DATE
Nick Shephard, President



   
    New Business    2.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Resolution 2023-32 - Authorizing a Project-Specific Agreement for Construction of Mountain Bike
Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park
Submitted by: Jay Evans, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Resolution 2023-32 - Authorizing a Project-Specific Agreement for Construction of Mountain
Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park

Background
Under a separate agenda item, the City Commission will consider a Master Agreement with
SORBAMIDTN for construction and maintenance of mountain bike trails in Smith Park.  That
agreement outlines the roles and responsibilities of the City of Brentwood and SORBAMIDTN in
a partnership to provide the specific trails to the mountain biking public.  The attached agreement
will provide authorization for construction of the trail that has been designed and proposed (see
Exhibit A).

The proposed bike trail consists of two areas: one that will be constructed by the City of
Brentwood, and one that will be constructed by SORBAMIDTN.  Due to topography, the
westernmost area will present more challenges than the eastern area.  It is the opinion of City
staff that the western area should be constructed by a professional trail construction firm under
contract with the City, and that SORBAMIDTN, with its heavy reliance on volunteer labor,
should construct the eastern portion.  Even though the western area will be a City-led project,
SORBAMIDTN will provide technical expertise and assistance as part of their obligations under
the Master Agreement. 

The attached agreement provides that SORBAMIDTN is authorized to construct the eastern
section of the trail at its sole expense and per the design guidelines approved by City staff.  The
City will retain the right to specify acceptable dates and times of work, points of ingress and
egress, and the types of equipment to be used.  Conflicts with other park uses and events at
Ravenswood Mansion will not be permitted, and the project must be coordinated such that
completion coincides with the City's completion of the western part of the trail.  Any construction
contracts let by SORBAMIDTN for work on the trail must include terms and conditions
acceptable to the City Attorney, and liability insurance requirements are specified.  

The agreement is for 18 months, which should be more than adequate to complete the project. 
The City may terminate the agreement with 30 days written notice if deemed necessary for the
public's best interest. 



Please contact Assistant City Manager Jay Evans with any questions.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the resolution authorizing the project-specific agreement with
SORBAMIDTN.

Fiscal Impact
Amount :
Source of Funds:
Account Number:
Fiscal Impact:
The City is not obligated to expend funds for the construction of the eastern portion of the
project.  Construction of the western portion will be City-funded, and $50,000 in placeholder
funding was shown in the FY 2023-2028 Capital Improvements Program for that purpose.  The
total cost of the City's portion is not yet known, but is not expected to exceed $150,000. 

Attachments
Resolution 2023-32 
Project-Specific Agreement 



RESOLUTION 2023-32

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT BY AND 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD AND THE MIDDLE TN CHAPTER OF
SOUTHERN OFF ROAD BICYCLE ASSOCIATION (SORBAMIDTN) FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE 
SMITH PARK, A COPY OF SAID AGREEMENT BEING ATTACHED HERETO 

AND MADE A PART OF THIS RESOLUTION BY REFERENCE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENTWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Project-Specific Agreement for 
the Construction of Mountain Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park, by and between the 
City of Brentwood and Middle TN Chapter of Southern Off Road Bicycle Association 
(SORBAMIDTN), a copy of said agreement being attached hereto and made a part of this
resolution by reference.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, the general 
welfare of the City of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee requiring it.

MAYOR Rhea E. Little, III

ADOPTED: Approved as to form:

RECORDER Holly Earls CITY ATTORNEY Kristen L. Corn



PROJECT-SPECIFIC AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF MOUNTAIN BIKE 
TRAILS IN MARCELLA VIVRETTE SMITH PARK

This agreement is entered into the 27th day of February by and between the Middle TN Chapter of 
Southern Off Road Bicycle Association, hereinafter referred to as SORBAMIDTN, and City of 
Brentwood, hereinafter referred to as the City.  All terms and conditions of the Master Agreement 
for Construction and Maintenance of Mountain Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park are 
incorporated as if fully set forth herein.  

A. PURPOSE:
The purpose of this agreement is to authorize SORBAMIDTN to construct and maintain mountain 
bike trails within Smith Park, pursuant to the Master Agreement and the following:

B. PARK AREA SUBJECT TO THIS AUTHORIZATION:
The lands made available to SORBAMIDTN for trail construction are depicted in Exhibit “A” 
hereto.  

C. CONSTRUCTION WORK AUTHORIZED AND LIMITATIONS OF WORK
1. SORBAMIDTN is authorized to construct mountain bike trails at its sole expense with an 

alignment as depicted in Exhibit A.  Design specifications shall be approved by City staff and 
shall include, in addition to the trail alignment, the construction methods, tree clearing 
limitations, and stormwater management techniques to be employed for this project.

2. All work shall be done in accordance with the plan specifications and any deviations from the 
design shall be approved in writing by the City.

3. Days and times of work, areas of work, points of ingress and egress for volunteer and 
contract workers, vehicles, and equipment, and the types of equipment used shall be subject 
to the approval of the Brentwood Parks Director (“Director”).  The Director shall not permit 
work to be done that will conflict with other park activities or events at Ravenswood 
Mansion.  

4. The Director shall have the authority to stop work at any time he or she determines the work 
is not consistent with the approved design standards, presents a safety or environmental 
hazard, or conflicts with other uses in the park.

5. SORBAMIDTN shall coordinate the project schedule such that completion of the authorized 
work shall substantially coincide with the completion of the City-funded trail construction 
project that connects to the west as depicted in Exhibit A.

6. Any contracts entered into by SORBAMIDTN for construction work at Marcella Vivrette
Smith Park shall include terms and conditions acceptable to the City Attorney so as to 
adequately protect the City of Brentwood.  This shall include a requirement for contractors to 
maintain commercial general liability insurance with minimum coverage at $1 million per 
occurrence and $2 million aggregate, and naming City of Brentwood as an additional insured.

D. IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE
PARTIES THAT:

1. TENNESSEE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT. Any information furnished to the City under 
this instrument is subject to the Tennessee Public Records Act.

2. MODIFICATION. Modifications within the scope of the instrument shall be made by 
mutual consent of the parties, by the issuance of a written modification, signed and dated 
by all parties, prior to any changes being performed.



3. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES. This instrument in no way restricts the 
City or SORBAMIDTN from participating in similar activities with other public or 
private agencies, organizations, and individuals.

E. PRINCIPAL CONTACTS.
The principal contacts for this instrument are:

Land Manager (COB) SORBAMIDTN Contact
Name: Dave Bunt, Director of Parks

(or successor)
Name: Nick Shepard, President

Address: P.O. Box 788
Brentwood, TN 37024

Address: 1811 Baslia Ln
Spring Hill, TN  37174

Phone: 615-371-0080 Phone:
Email: dave.bunt@brentwoodtn.gov Email: president@sorbamidtn.org

F. NON-FUND OBLIGATING DOCUMENT: This instrument is neither a fiscal nor a funds 
obligation document. Any endeavor or transfer of anything of value involving reimbursement or 
contribution of funds between the parties to this instrument will be handled in accordance with 
applicable laws, regulations, and procedures including those for government procurement and 
printing. Such endeavors will be outlined in separate agreements that shall be made in writing by 
representatives of the parties and shall be independently authorized by appropriate statutory 
authority. This instrument does not provide such authority. Specifically, this instrument does not 
establish authority for noncompetitive award to the cooperator of any contract or other 
agreement. Any contract or agreement for training or other services must fully comply with all 
applicable requirements for competition.

G. COMMENCEMENT/EXPIRATION DATE: This instrument is executed as of the date of 
last signature and shall expire 18 months from said date, unless canceled or amended. Should at 
any time it be determined that the public’s best interest would be served by the termination of the 
Agreement, the City in its discretion may upon thirty (30) days written notice to SORBAMIDTN 
terminate the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the last written 
date below.

______________________________________       ____________
Mayor, City of Brentwood DATE
Rhea E. Little, III

______________________________________       ____________
SORBAMIDTN President DATE
Nick Shephard



Exhibit A

General Location of Lands Made Available and Proposed Trail Alignment



   
    Other Business    3. a.        

Brentwood City Commission Agenda
Meeting Date: 02/27/2023  
Presentation of Report on Recent Debt Funding Obligation (State Form CT-0253) 
Submitted by: Holly Earls, Administration
Department: Administration

Information
Subject
Presentation of Report on Recent Debt Funding Obligation (State Form CT-0253)

Background
The City just completed a successful competitive bond issue to partially fund the Ragsdale Road
project, Windy Hill Park development and the citywide LED streetlight retrofit project. A total of
six electronic bids were received for the new money bond issue.  The lowest and best bid was
submitted by Robert W. Baird & Co. Inc. with a true interest cost of 3.367099%.

As a follow-up to the bond closing, the City is required to complete and submit to the State of
Tennessee the attached "Report on Debt Obligations" (State Form No. CT-0253) for each of the
two bond issues. State law requires that these forms be presented to the City Commission at a
public meeting prior to submission to the State. Note that all report information has been
previously covered with the Board. 

If you have any questions regarding the attached form, please contact the Finance Director.

Staff Recommendation
N/A - No formal action by the City Commission is required.  This report is for informational
purposes only as required by the Tennessee Comptroller.

Previous Commission Action
Resolution 2022-130 and Resolution 2022-131, authorizing the issuance of not to exceed
$8,000,000 in general obligation public improvement bonds, was approved by the City
Commission on November 28, 2022.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
CT-0253 



IG12003
Receipt






	Agenda
	AI_7185_Approval or correction of minutes from Regular Scheduled Commission meeting
	       Draft Minutes
	AI_7362_Res 2023-27 - Approval to Use a Competitive Sealed Proposals Process for the Procurement of Updating Fiber Termination Services
	       Resolution 2023-27
	AI_7369_Res 2023-28 - Authorizing a Contract Extension with Four Star Paving, LLC. for Annual Roadway Repairs and Improvements.
	       Resolution 2023-28
	       Change Order__2022-066
	       COB Contract _ 2022-066
	AI_7370_Resolution 2023-29 Authorizing a change order with ProShot Concrete for Stormwater Pipe Repair & Lining
	       Resolution 2023-29
	       Change Order__2022-086
	       COB Contract _ 2022-086
	AI_7368_Res 2023-30 - Approval of Agreement with Southeastern Tank, Inc. for Tank Rehabilitation Project
	       Resolution 2023-30
	       COB Contract _ 2023-028
	       Submitted Bids
	       Location Map
	AI_7338_Resolution 2023-33 - Agreement with Pavement Technologies, Inc. for Use of Reclamite Asphalt Rejuvenation Slurry on a Trial Basis
	       Resolution 2023-33
	       COB Contract 2023-21
	       Exhibit A - Invitation to Bid
	ITB-2022-ITB-027-2023-02-17-15-51-37
	[A] Asphalt_Rejuvenation_Spec

	       Exhibit B - Submittal 
	AI_7371_Approval of amendment of previously approved purchase of Five Trucks on September 12, 2022
	       Vehicle pricing information
	AI_7313_Ord 2023-01-Windy Hill Park Rezoning from R-2 (Suburban Residential) to SI-3 (Service Institution)
	       Ordinance 2023-01
	       Windy Hill Park Aerial 
	       Property Survey
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	       Master Plan Presentation
	WINDY HILL PARK
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	AI_7372_Res 2023-31 - Master Agreement with SORBAMIDTN for Construction & Maintenance of Mt Bike Trails Smith Park 
	       Resolution 2023-31
	       COB Contract No. 2023-029
	AI_7373_Resolution 2023-32 - Authorizing a Project-Specific Agreement for Construction of Mountain Bike Trails in Marcella Vivrette Smith Park
	       Resolution 2023-32
	       Project-Specific Agreement
	AI_7326_Presentation of Report on Recent Debt Funding Obligation (State Form CT-0253) 
	       CT-0253

